
SOUNDCARE, INC. 
PO Box 64849 
Tacoma, WA 98464 

October 17, 2022 

Eric Hernandez, Program Manager 
Certificate of Need Program 
Department of Health 
P.O. Box 47852 
Olympia, WA 98504-7852 

Dear Mr. Hernandez: 

Via email: FSLCON@DOH WA.GOV 

Enclosed please find a Certificate of Need application from Soundcare, Inc. proposing to 
unbank, reinstate and restore bed rights to 36 of the 63 banked beds that were banked pursuant to 
the full facility closure bed banking application submitted in 2018 for Nisqually Valley Care 
Center, located in Pierce County, and approved on July 6th

, 2018. 

The processing fee of $46,253 was sent separately. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional information. 

Sincerely, 

-�
John Y. Gregory, Chairman 



Official Use Only­

Date Received: 

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED 
Nursing Home Projects 

(Excluding CCRC ) 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Certificate of Need applications must be submitted with a fee in accordance with Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 
246-310-990 and the instructions on page 2 of this form.

Application is made for a Certificate of Need in accordance with provisions of Chapter 70.38 Revised Code of Washington 
(RCW) and Rules and Regulations adopted by the Department (WAC 246-310). I hereby certify that the statements made 
in this application are correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

OWNER: 
Soundcare, Inc. 

Name and Title of Responsible Officer 
(PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE) 
John Y. Gregory, Chairman 

Legal Name of Owner: 
Soundcare, Inc. 

Address of Owner: 

P.O. Box 64849 
Tacoma, WA 98464 

APPLICANT(S) 

OPERATOR: 
Soundcare, Inc. 

Name and Title of Responsible Officer 
(PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE) 
John Y. Gregory, Chairman 

Legal Name of Operator: 
Soundcare, Inc., 

Address of Operator: 

PO Box 64849 
Tacoma, WA 98464 

�� � 
Signature of Re ns'eOfficer SignatureofRessible Or

Date:�z. Telephone: 00--,370---/f/6.t?' Date: �x/za_ 
2 

Telephone�a..,� ,/ 4"£�f 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------✓-----------------------------------------------------------------

TYPE OF OWNERSHIP: 
[ ] District 
[ ] Private Non-Profit 
[ X ] Proprietary - Corporation 
[ ] Proprietary - Individual 
[ ] Proprietary - Partnership 
[ ] State or County 

Proprietor(s) or Stockholder(s) information: 
Provide the name and address of each owner 
and indicate percentage of ownership: 

See Exhibit A attached hereto 

Intended Project Start Date:July 1, 2023 
ESTIMATED CAPITAL EXPENDITURE: $18,451,590
 

OPERATION OF FACILITY: 
[ ] Owner Operated 
[ X ] Management Contract 
[ X] Lease

TYPE OF PROJECT (check all that apply): 
[ ] Total Replacement of Existing Facility 
[X] New Facility
[ ] Renovation/Modernization 
[ ] Bed Addition 
[ ] Capital Expenditure Over the Minimum
[ ] Bed Capacity Change/Redistribution 
[ ] New Institutional Health Service 
[ ] Mandatory Correction of Fine/Deficiencies
[ ] Amend Current Certificate of Need 
[ ] Expansion/Reduction of Physical Plant
[ ] Other ____________ _ 
Intended Project Completion Date: November 2024

Project Description: Soundcare, Inc. desires to unbank, reinstate and restore Bed Rights to 36 of the 63 Banked Beds 
that were banked pursuant to the full facility closure bed banking application submitted in 2018 for Nisqually Valley Care 
Center and approved on July 6th, 2018. 



SOUNDCARE INC. 
CERTIFICATE OF NEED APPLICATION  

TO  
UNBANK 36 FULL-FACILITY CLOSURE  

NURSING HOME BEDS  
FROM  

NISQUALLY VALLEY CARE CENTER, PIERCE 
COUNTY 

October 2022 



2 
 

SECTION 1 
APPLICANT DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 A. Owner Description: 

 
1. Legal name of owner: 

 
The legal name of the applicant is Soundcare, Inc., (Soundcare). Soundcare is a Washington 
corporation and is the sole owner of the bed rights banked at the time of closure of Nisqually 
Valley Care Center, located at 9414 357th St. S, McKenna, WA 98558.  
 
The new facility housing the 36 beds to be unbanked beds will be known as Bradley Park Care 
Center.  

 
 

2. Address of each owner: 
 
The address for Soundcare, Inc. is: 

PO Box 64849 
Tacoma, WA 98464 

 
 

3. Provide the following information about each owner. 
 
a. If an out-of-state corporation, submit proof of registration with Secretary of 

State, Corporations, Trademarks and Limited Partnerships Division.  Show 
relationship to any organization as defined in Section 405.427 of the Medicare 
Regulations. 
 

Soundcare is not an out-of-state corporation. This question is not applicable.  
 
 

b. If an out-of-state partnership, submit proof of registration with Secretary of 
State, Corporations, Trademarks and Limited Partnerships Division, and a 
chart showing organizational relationship to any related organizations as 
defined in Section 405.427 of the Medicare Regulations. 

 
Soundcare is not an out-of-state partnership. This question is not applicable. 
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B. OPERATOR DESCRIPTION: 
 

1. Legal name and address of operating entity (unless same as owner). 
 

The replacement nursing facility (NF) will be located on the campus of Bradley Park in 
Puyallup, WA and will be known as Bradley Park Care Center. At opening, the licensee and 
operating entity will be Soundcare.  
 
Bradley Park is a retirement community owned and operated by a subsidiary of Wesley Homes 
Corporation (Wesley). Wesley has provided a network of services offering a continuum of care 
for older adults in King and Pierce Counties for nearly 80 years. It is affiliated with the Pacific 
Northwest Conference of the United Methodist Church.  
 

The address for Bradley Park Care Center will be:  
 

707 39th Avenue SE, Puyallup, WA 98374 
 

Wesley has agreed that its subsidiary, Wesley Homes Bradley Park, LLC, will construct, at its 
sole cost and expense, the NF. Upon completion of the construction of the new facility, Wesley 
Homes Bradley Park, LLC will lease the NF building to Soundcare and as required by CN rules, 
the NF will initially be licensed, and Medicare and Medicaid certified, in the name of Soundcare. 
 
Soundcare will enter into an agreement with Wesley for day to day operations. A copy of the 
draft interim sublease and management agreement is included in Exhibit 1.  
 
Wesley intends to become the licensed operator and Medicare and Medicaid certified provider of 
the NF after Soundcare’s initial licensure and certification, at which time the lease and 
management agreement with Soundcare will terminate. 
 

 
a. If an out-of-state corporation, submit proof of registration with Secretary of State, 

Corporations, Trademarks and Limited Partnerships Division, and a chart showing 
organizational relationship to any related organizations as defined in Section 
405.427 of the Medicare Regulations. 

 
Soundcare is a Washington corporation. This question is not applicable. 
 
 

b. If an out-of-state partnership, submit proof of registration with Secretary of State, 
Corporations, Trademarks and Limited Partnerships Division, and a chart showing 
organizational relationship to any related organizations as defined in Section 
405.427 of the Medicare Regulations. 

 
Soundcare is a Washington corporation. This question is not applicable.  
 
 

http://www.pnwumc.org/
http://www.pnwumc.org/
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c. Is the applicant currently, or does the applicant propose to be reimbursed for 
services provided under Title V, Title XVIII, and/or Title XIX of the Social Security 
Act? 

 
Soundcare will secure both Medicaid and Medicare certification for the new facility. When 
Wesley assumes ownership, it too will secure both Medicaid and Medicare certification. 
 
 

d. Name, title, address and telephone number of person to whom questions regarding 
this application should be directed. 

 
Questions regarding this application should be addressed to: 

  
 Lessee/Licensee:  
    Soundcare, Inc. 
    PO Box 64849 
    Tacoma, WA 98464 
    Attn: John Y. Gregory 
     
 Attorney:  
    Perkins Coie 
    1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4900 
    Seattle, WA  98101 
    Attn: Jessica Cohen 
    Phone #: 206-359-8226 
    Email: jessicacohen@perkinscoie.com 
 
 

e. Provide separate listings of each Washington and out-of-state health care facility, 
including name, address, Medicare provider number, Medicaid provider number, 
owned and/or managed by each applicant or by a related party, and indicate 
whether owned or managed.  For each out-of-state facility, provide the name, 
address, telephone number, and contact person for the entity responsible for the 
licensing/survey of each facility. 

 
Soundcare, Inc. does not currently own and/or manage any other nursing facilities. The beds 
from Nisqually Valley Care Center are not currently in service and were banked in 2018. 

 
 
 
 

  

mailto:jessicacohen@perkinscoie.com
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SECTION 2 
FACILITY DESCRIPTION 

 
 

A. Name and address of the proposed/existing facility. 
 

The address for the proposed Bradley Park Care Center is:  
 

707 39th Avenue SE 
Puyallup, WA 98374 

 
 

B. Provide the following information: 
 
             NURSING HOME BOARDING HOME 
             (SNF/ICF)  (Cong.) 

Total Number of Beds Currently Licensed         36                 0 
Number of Beds Currently Set up          0                 0 

 
 
Upon project completion, Soundcare will operate with the following bed configuration: 
 
             NURSING HOME BOARDING HOME 
             (SNF/ICF)  (Cong.) 
Total number of beds currently licensed           36                 0 
 
Total number of beds currently set-up           36                 0 
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SECTION 3 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
 

A. Describe the proposed project. This description should include discussion of any 
proposed conversion or renovation of existing space, as well as the construction of 
new facility space. Also, specify any unique services being proposed. 

 
This application is submitted in response to RCW 70.38.115(13)(b) which requires certificate of 
need review for: 
 

any party who has reserved the nursing home beds except that the need criteria shall be 
deemed met when the applicant is the licensee who had operated the beds for at least one 
year, who has operated the beds for at least one year immediately preceding the 
reservation of the beds and who is replacing the beds in the same planning area. 
 

Soundcare, Inc. was the licensee operating as sole owner of Nisqually Valley Care Center 
(Nisqually Valley) immediately preceding the reservation of the beds and is the applicant who 
proposes to unbank, reinstate, and restore the bed rights to 36 of the 63 Nisqually Valley beds it 
banked under full facility closure in 2018.    

 
Soundcare elected to close Nisqually Valley for a variety of reasons including, but not limited to, 
the age of the building (according to the Pierce County Assessor Office, the building was built in 
1930) as well as the risk of flood and other for structural reasons. The residents were relocated, 
and Nisqually Valley closed on May 22, 2018. The Department of Health (Department) 
approved the bed banking on July 6th, 2018.  
 
The 36 beds will be located in a to be constructed facility on the campus of Wesley’s Bradley 
Park community in Puyallup. The NF will be single story, with 34 single rooms and 1 2-bedroom 
included in a “neighborhood” model design for a smaller, more intimate feel. Each neighborhood 
includes a dining area, activity area, and living room for resident use that is centrally located to 
the neighborhood. Also, each neighborhood includes all of the service components such as soiled 
and clean linen, medication rooms, personal laundry and staff office so that staff will not need to 
go to other areas of the building to provide services for the residents. There will be 34 private 
rooms and one two-bedroom unit; all rooms have a full bath with shower, and a small, separate 
‘kitchen’ area with a sink and microwave.  

 
As noted earlier, Wesley Homes Bradley Park, LLC, will construct, at its sole cost and expense, 
a facility on the Bradley Park campus within which the 36 bed NF will be operated. Upon 
completion of the construction of the NF, Wesley Homes Bradley Park, LLC will lease the NF to 
Soundcare, and the NF will initially be licensed, and Medicare and Medicaid certified, in the 
name of Soundcare. It is intended that Wesley become the licensed operator and Medicare and 
Medicaid certified provider of the NF after its initial licensure and certification.  
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Soundcare intends to engage Wesley Homes (or an affiliate of Wesley Homes) to manage the NF 
until such time as the NF can be licensed in the name of Wesley Homes (or an affiliate of 
Wesley Homes) at which time the lease and management agreement with Soundcare will 
terminate.  
 
 

B. Health Services (check all in each column that apply): 
 
 

TYPES OF THERAPY SUPPORT 
SERVICES 

CURRENT 
SERVICES 

PROPOSED 
SERVICES 

Physical Therapy Inpatient  x 
Physical Therapy Outpatient  x 
Speech Therapy Inpatient  x 
Speech Therapy Outpatient  x 
Occupational Therapy Inpatient  x 
Occupational Therapy Outpatient  x 
Nursing Services Outpatient   
Meals on Wheels Outpatient   
Adult Day Care Outpatient   
Other (specify) Outpatient   

    
 
 
C. Increase in total licensed beds or redistribution of beds among facility and service 

categories of skilled nursing and boarding home care: 
  

The project will unbank, reinstate, and restore the bed rights to 36 beds at the Bradley Park Care 
Center.  

 
 
D. Indicate if the nursing home would be Medicaid certified.     

 
Yes, the NF will be Medicaid certified.   
 
 

E. Indicate if the nursing home would be Medicare eligible.       
 

Yes, the NF will be Medicare eligible.   
 

Indicate the number of Medicare certified beds.   
 

Current   0  Proposed  36 
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F. Description of new equipment proposed, including cost of the equipment. 
   

The equipment list is provided in Exhibit 2.  
 
 
G. Description of equipment to be replaced, including cost of equipment and salvage 

value (if any) or disposal or use of the equipment to be replaced. 
   

The facility is new. No equipment will be replaced. 
 
 
H. Blueprint size schematic drawings to scale of current locations of patient rooms, 

ancillary departments, and support services. 
 
The facility does not currently operate. This question is not applicable. 

 
 
I. Blueprint size schematic drawings to scale of proposed locations of patient rooms, 

ancillary department, and support services, clearly differentiating between remodeled 
areas and new construction. 

 
The requested drawings are included as Exhibit 3.  

 
 
J.  Geographic location of site of proposed project. 

1. Indicate the number of acres in nursing home site: Acres: The total Bradley Park 
campus is 15 acres; the NF will occupy 1.33 acres 

 
2. Indicate the number of acres in any alternate site for the nursing home (if 

applicable) 
 
Acres  There is no alternate site. This is not applicable.  

  
3. Indicate if the primary site or alternate site has been acquired (if applicable)  
 Yes:  X   No            

 
Address of site:  
 

The primary site address is: 
 

707 39th Avenue SE, Puyallup, WA 98374 
 
Address of alternate site:  
 

There is no alternate site. 
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4. If the primary site or alternate site has not been acquired, explain the current 
status of the site acquisition plans, including proposed time frames. 

 
A primary site has been acquired; therefore, this question is not applicable. 
 
 

5. Demonstration of sufficient interest in project site.  Provide a copy of a clear 
legal title to the proposed site and one of the following: 
a. Lease for at least five years, with options to renew for not less than a total of 

twenty years; or 
b. Legal, enforceable agreement to give such title or such lease in the event a 

Certificate of Need is issued. 
 

The draft interim sublease and management agreement between Soundcare, Inc. and Wesley 
Homes was included in Exhibit 1.  

 
Documentation from the Pierce County Assessor’s Office reflecting Wesley’s ownership of the 
site upon which the NF will be located is included at Exhibit 4. Clear legal title to the property 
(deed of trust) is included in Exhibit 5.  

 
 

6. Demonstration that the proposed site may be used for the proposed project.  
Please include a letter from the appropriate municipal authority indicating that 
the site for the proposed project is properly zoned for the anticipated use and 
scope of the project, or a written explanation of why the proposed purpose is 
exempt. 

 
Exhibit 6 includes a letter from the City of Puyallup indicating that the property is 
appropriately zoned. 

  
 

K. Space Requirements 
 

1. Existing gross square footage:  _NA__ 
  
2. Total gross square footage for the proposed addition and the existing facility: _NA  
 
3. Proposed new facility gross square footage:  33,500 square feet 
 
4. Do the above responses include any shelled-in areas? Yes __ No X 
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L. Proposed Timetables for Project Implementation:

1. Financing:
a. Date for obtaining construction financing: June 2023 

b. Date for obtaining permanent financing: June 2023 

c. Date for obtaining funds necessary to undertake the project: June 2023

2. Design:
a. Date for completion and submittal of preliminary

drawings to Consultation and Construction Review Section: May 2022

b. Date for completion and submittal of final drawings and specifications to
Consultation and Construction Review Section:    January 2023

3. Construction
a. Date for construction contract award: July 2023 

b. Date for 25 percent completion of construction: September 2023 

c. Date for 50 percent completion of construction: March 2024 

d. Date for 75 percent completion of construction: August 2024 

e. Date for completion of construction: October 2024 

f. Date for obtaining licensure approval: October 2024 

g. Date for occupancy/offering of service(s) January 2025 

M. As the applicant(s) for this project, please describe your experience and expertise in
the planning, developing, financing, and construction of skilled nursing and
intermediate care facilities.

The planning, financing and construction of the NF is the responsibility of Wesley.  

Wesley owns and operates a continuing care retirement community in Des Moines, which 
includes independent living, licensed assisted living, and a 148 bed NF. Many of the buildings on 
this campus were reconstructed in 2016-2020.  

In July of 2018, Wesley completed construction of the independent and assisted living units on 
its Bradley Park campus. This project was designed and constructed by Wesley in conjunction 
with the same architect, designer, and project manager that will be used for the construction of 
the proposed Bradley Park Care Center. Wesley secured $83,030,000 in tax exempt fixed and 
variable rate bonds for the project.  
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In addition to Bradley Park, Wesley also owns and operates a retirement community in Auburn 
known as Lea Hill, as well as an independent and assisted living community in Bonney Lake.  
 
In total Wesley has constructed more than 1,600,000 square feet of space and has secured more 
than $440,690,000 in financing for these campuses over the past six years. 
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SECTION 4  
PROJECT RATIONALE-NEED 

WAC 246-310-210 and WAC 246-310-380 (6) 
 

 
1. Identify and analyze the unmet health service need and/or other problems to 

which this project is directed. 
a. Describe the need of the people you plan to serve for the service you propose. 

 
Consistent with the provisions of RCW 70.38.115 (13)(b), the need criteria are deemed met. 

  
 

b. Address the need for nursing home beds based on the 45 beds per 1,000 
population and Substitute House Bill 2098, which encourages the 
development of a broad array of home and community-based long-term care 
services as an alternative to nursing home care. 

 
Consistent with the provisions of RCW 70.38.115 (13)(b), the need criteria are deemed met. 

 
 

2. If your proposal exceeds the number of beds identified as needed in your county 
nursing home planning area as shown in WAC 246-310-380 (6), please discuss 
how the approval of beds beyond the projected need would further the policy 
that beds should be located reasonably close to the people they serve. 

 
Consistent with the provisions of RCW 70.38.115 (13)(b), the need criteria are deemed met. 

 
 
3.  Provide utilization data for each of the last three full fiscal years, the current 

annualized full fiscal year, and the next three full fiscal years: (USE SCHEDULE A 
which is attached to these guidelines.) 

 
Table 1 provides the estimated utilization for the first three full years of operation (2025-2027). 

 
Table 1 

Bradley Park Care Center, Projected Days by Payer, 2025-2027 
 Medicare 

Days 
Medicaid 

Days 
Private 
Days 

Other 
Days* 

Total 
Days 

# of 
Licensed 

Beds 

Occupancy 
Rates 

Year 1-
2025 

4,800 1,593 2,605 200 9,198 36 70% 

Year 2- 
2026 

5,800 2,200 3,380 500 11,880 36 90.4% 

Year 3- 
2027 

6,100 2,200 3,380 500 12,180 36 92.7% 

Source:  Applicant, *other includes HMO and L&I 
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4. In the case of any proposed conversion of beds from other service categories to
nursing care beds, provide evidence that the conversion will not jeopardize the
availability of service.  Document the availability and accessibility of the services
that are to be converted.

The project does not propose any conversion of beds from other service categories. 

5. In the context of the criteria contained in WAC 246-310-210 (2) (a) and (b), please
describe how the service will be available to the following: low-income individuals,
racial and ethnic minorities, women, handicapped individuals, elderly, and other
under-served individuals.

Included at Exhibit 7 is a draft non discrimination policy for the NF. The NF will be an equal 
opportunity institution and will not discriminate against any person in admission, treatment or 
participation in its programs on the basis of race, color, religion, ancestry, creed, sex, national 
origin, veteran status, sexual orientation, marital status, handicapping condition, age, or arrest 
and court records (as permitted by state law). As indicated in Table 1, it is estimated that over 
18% of the patient days served by the facility will have Medicaid as a payer.  

In addition, also included in Exhibit 7 are the other policies.  Because the NF will be managed by 
Wesley and because Wesley intends to become the ultimate licensed operator of the NF, the 
admissions and other operational policies and procedures will be provided by Wesley. If the 
Department has any concerns about the policies being those of Wesley, please advise in 
screening.  

6. Does/will the facility require a pre-admission deposit? Please explain the intent and
use of the deposit.

The NF will not require a pre-admission deposit for Medicare and Medicaid residents. 

7. Please submit copies of the facility's admission agreement, policies, and procedures.

A copy of the admission agreement as well as other policies and procedures are included as 
Exhibit 7. These agreements are currently in effect at Wesley’s other NF.  
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8. If you propose any special services including, but not limited to, heavy care, 
Alzheimer's care, respite care, and adult day care, please provide the following: 

 
a. Describe the service in full detail. 

 
b. Include program content, staffing by classification and FTE commitment, 

budget, and the amount of space dedicated to each service. 
 

c. Document the need for any special services. 
 
Bradley Park Care Center will provide a full range of NF level services, but no specialty 
programming is proposed.  
 

 
9. If the purpose of the project is to correct existing structure, fire, and/or life-safety 

code deficiencies, or licensing, accreditation, or certification standards as provided 
for under provisions of WAC 246-310-480, provide a detailed description of the 
cited deficiencies and attach copies of the two most recent Fire Marshal's surveys 
and/or surveys conducted by the Survey Program, Aging and Adult Services 
Administration, Department of Social and Health Services, or other surveying 
agency. 

 
This question is not applicable. 
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SECTION 4  

PROJECT RATIONALE-FIINANCIAL FEASIBILITY  
WAC 246-310-220 

 
 

 
SECTION I: 

(Applicants proposing to construct a new nursing home or replace an existing nursing 
home on the same or a new site, should complete this section). 
 
Indicate the name, address, and telephone number of the licensed architect or engineer that 
completed this section: 
 
NAME:  Jill Krance 
  Insite Architects 
  Email: Jill@insitearchitect.com 
 
ADDRESS: 1000 University Ave, West Suite 
  St. Paul, MN 55104 
 
PHONE: 612-252-4822 
 
Proposed Site Address: 707 39th Ave SE, Puyallup, WA, 98374 
 
The following Part I, Reasonable Building Cost Guidelines, and Part II, Reasonable Land Cost 
Guidelines, will be utilized to determine whether or not the building cost per bed and land cost 
are reasonable.  These guidelines are based on WAC 388-96-745. 
 

 
PART I -- REASONABLE BUILDING COST GUIDELINES   

 
1. The Marshall Valuation Services (updated August 1993) Section I, pages 3-12, 

describes the building class (A, B, C, and D) and the building quality (excellent, 
good, average, and low cost) of the building.  Based on this description, state the 
building class and building quality that is proposed for construction by this project.  
Applicants proposing to add beds at an existing nursing home should also state the 
building class and building quality of the existing nursing home. 

 
This question is no longer applicable as Marshall Swift (and land lid calculations) are no longer a 
part of the Nursing Home rate calculation methodology. Effective July 1, 2016, the Legislature 
passed a new rate system for Nursing Homes. A Capital – Fair Market Rental (FMR) component 
calculation was implemented that replaced a methodology based on specific facility asset values. 
This new FMR calculation uses a fixed cost per allowable square footage amount set by the 
Legislature from “RS Means” (currently $194.86) times the allowable square footage of the 
building limited to a maximum of 450 square feet per bed. There is also an adjustment based on 
location. The Pierce County zip code location factor for Bradley Park Care Center is 1.05. 
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In the case of this project, this would be 36 beds licensed times 450 = 16,200 max. Moveable 
equipment is calculated at 10% of the building value and also Land is 10%. 
 
The calculated value of the building and equipment using the above data is then adjusted for 
depreciation using the age of the building times “.015”. Since our building is new there will be 
no offset in year one. Then the land value is added to the adjusted value and multiplied times a 
Rental Rate of .075. The total calculation is then divided by the census days to calculate a rate 
per patient day. 
 
 

2. Indicate the total number of square feet of construction that is proposed including 
walls, partitions, stairwells, etc.   

 
The facility will have approximately 33,500 gross square feet.  

 
 
3. The Marshall Valuation Services (updated August 1993) Section I, pages 3-12, 

describes the type of materials that can be utilized to construct the frame, floor, 
roof, and walls of a building.  Based on this description, indicate the type of 
materials that would be utilized in the following major components of the proposed 
building. 

 
See above. This question is no longer applicable. 
 
 

4. Indicate the total cost of constructing the new nursing home, replacing the existing 
nursing home, or constructing a bed addition at the nursing home.  In cases where a 
nursing home/boarding home facility shares a common foundation and roof, the 
cost of the shared items shall be apportioned to the nursing home based on the 
Medicare program methodology for apportioned costs to the nursing home service.  
Construction costs shall include the following: 

 
The capital costs for the project are as provided in Table 2:  
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Table 2 
Estimated Capital Costs 

Item Cost 
a. Land Purchase 381,574  
b. Utilities to Lot Line  
c. Land Improvements  
d. Building Purchase  
e. Residual Value of Replaced Facility  
f. Building Construction 13,924,160  
g. Fixed Equipment (not already included in the 
    construction contract)  

h. Movable Equipment  
i. Architect and Engineering Fees 1,054,037  
j. Consulting Fees  803,300  
k. Site Preparation  $  
l. Supervision and Inspection of Site  $  
m. Any Costs Associated with Securing the Sources of 
Financing (include interim interest during construction)  $  

         1.  Land   
         2.  Building  $  
         3.  Equipment  $  
         4.  Other  $  
n. Washington Sales Tax  $  
         1.  Land  $  
         2.  Building   
         3.  Equipment  $  
         4.  Other   
o. Other Project Costs   
   
City and Regulatory Charges  438,074  
Financing and Cost of Issuance  585,609  
Legal and Organizational Fees 75,000  
Bed Transfer   522,500  
Development Fee and Expense 667,336 
p. Total Estimated Capital Cost (Actual/Replacement Cost) 18,451,590 

Source:  Applicant 
 

 
5. Provide a copy of a signed non-binding cost estimate or contractor's estimate of the 

project's land improvements, building construction cost, architect, and engineering 
fees, site preparation, supervision, and inspection of site, Washington State sales tax, 
and other projects costs (items c, f, i, k, m, n, and o above).  

 
The requested information will be provided with the request for supplemental information.  
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6. The reasonableness of building construction cost is based on the data shown in the 

table shown on the next page entitled, "Cost Guidelines for New Building and 
Improvements Plus Increments for Additional Beds." Reasonable building costs will 
be determined by: 

 
a. Locating the class of construction (A, B, C, or D) and quality of construction 

(good, average, low) in the table, multiply the number of beds proposed by the 
appropriate per bed base cost; 

 
b. Identify the appropriate base cost for the facility (using the same class and 

quality of construction); 
 
c. Additional incremental allowances are allowed for projects requesting beds 

between 75-120 and projects of over 120 beds. 
 
 c1. For projects greater than 74 beds, but less than 121 beds, multiply the 

appropriate per bed incremental allowance (using the same class and quality of 
construction) by the number of additional beds between 75 to 120: or  

 
 c2. For projects greater than 120 beds, multiply the appropriate per bed 

incremental allowance (using the same class and quality of construction) by the 
number of additional beds over 75, but less than 120, then multiply the 
appropriate incremental allowance by the number of beds over 120 and add 
these two figures together. 

 
See the response to Q1 in this section. 

 
 
7. The figures from 6a, 6b, and 6c, when applicable, are added to determine the 

construction cost lids.  Final lid values will be adjusted for inflation using the actual 
change in the appropriate cost indexes. 

 
See the response to Q1 in this section. 
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8. The above estimated building costs per bed may be adjusted when the following 

circumstances apply to the project. 

a. Construction changes required by Facilities and Services Licensing Section, 
Office of Resource Development, and/or Department of Health in the course of 
approving the building plans for the project. 

b. Four story or higher construction. 
c. Unusual labor or climatic conditions at time of construction that were not 

foreseeable by management. 
d. Cost savings realized in other components of the project such as equipment or 

operating costs. 

e. Where more than one major construction type is present, an average facility type 
shall be computed by weighing relative costs of the framing, floor, roof, and walls. 

 
Please refer to our response to Q1 in this section. 
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PART II -- REASONABLE LAND COST GUIDELINES 
 

1. The land cost guidelines are for land that is utilized by the nursing home service.  
When an applicant proposes to construct a new nursing home/boarding home 
facility, the amount of land utilized by the nursing home services should be 
calculated based on Medicaid program methodology for apportioning costs to the 
nursing home for reimbursement purposes.   

 
As noted earlier in this section, effective July 1, 2016, the Legislature passed a new rate system 
for Nursing Homes. A Capital – Fair Market Rental (FMR) component calculation was 
implemented that replaced a methodology based on specific facility asset values. Land is 
calculated at 10% of the building value.  
 
 

2. Indicate the number of square feet of land that would be utilized for the nursing 
home service:   

 
The proposed NF includes 33,500 square feet. 

 
3. Indicate the cost per square foot for the utilized by the nursing home service:  

 
The cost per square foot is $275.00. 

 
4. Exceptions to square foot cost lids (WAC 388-96-745 (7)) may be allowed to a 

maximum of ten percent (WAC 388-96-754(8)).  An adjustment shall be granted 
only if requested by the applicant.  Applicants requesting adjustments to the 
guidelines for reasonable land costs shall provide written justification and an 
analysis showing the rationale for the adjustments. 

 
See earlier responses. The methodology has changed, and this question is no longer applicable.  

 
 
5. Exceptions to land area lids (WAC 388-96-762) may be allowed.  An adjustment 

shall be granted only if requested by the applicant and meet the criteria defined in 
WAC 388-96-762(3).  Applicants requesting adjustments to the guidelines for area 
land lids shall provide written justification and an analysis showing the rationale for 
the adjustments. 

 
See earlier responses. The methodology has changed, and this question is no longer applicable.  
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SECTION IV 
 

1. Identify the owner or operator who will incur the debt for the proposed project. 
 

The building will be constructed and owned by Wesley Homes Bradley Park, LLC which will 
fund the cost of constructing and equipping the NF from bank financing and Owner’s Equity.  

 
 

2. Anticipated sources and amounts of financing for the project (actual sources for 
conversions) 

 
Table 3 details the sources and amount of financing. The total amount of financing covers the 
estimated capital expenditure and start up costs. It also includes interim interest and working 
capital.  
 

Table 3 
Sources and Amounts of Financing 

 Specify Type Dollar Amount 
Public Campaign   
Bond Issue   
Commercial Loans 5.25% interest for a term of 30 

years 
$19,431,528 

Government Loans   
Grants   
Bequests & Endorsements   
Private Foundations   
Accumulated Reserves   
Owner's Equity Wesley Homes reserves $1,000,000 
Other - (specify)   
Other - (specify)   
TOTAL (must equal total Project 
Cost 

 $20,431,528 

Source:  Applicant 
 
Additional project costs, outside of the capital expenditure include: capitalized interest 
($699,933), working capital ($1,132,267) and start up costs ($147,738) for total project costs of 
$20,431,528.  
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3. Provide a complete description of the methods of financing which were considered 

for the proposed project. Discuss the advantages of each method in terms of costs 
and explain why the specific method (s) to be utilized was (were) selected. 

 
While Soundcare, in its capacity as the licensed operator of the NF, is the applicant for this CN, 
as noted above, the NF will be constructed by, and at the cost of, Wesley Homes Bradley Park, 
LLC. Given that the intent is for Soundcare to operationalize (license and certify) the NF, and 
then to have the facility transferred to the ownership and operating control of Wesley; having 
Wesley assume the debt was determined to be the most logical and most expeditious means. 
 
Wesley did evaluate other ways to fund the project, including tax-exempt financing, but the 
timing was significantly longer, and the interest rate Wesley has been assuming for the 
commercial financing is reasonable.  
 
 

4. Indicate the anticipated interest rate on the loan for constructing the nursing home 
 
The anticipated interest rate is 5.25% at the time of application.  

  
 
5. Indicate if the interest rate will be fixed or variable on the long-term loan and 

indicate the rate of interest. 
 
The interest rate will be fixed. The loan will be for 30 years.  
 

 
6. Estimated start-up and initial operating expenses 
 

a. Total estimated start-up costs (expenses incurred prior to opening such as staff 
training, inventory, etc., reimbursed in accordance with Medicaid guidelines for 
start-up costs) 

 
Table 4 provides the start up costs:  

 
Table 4 

Estimated Start Up Costs 
Item Cost 

Staffing $86,738 
Marketing $36,000 
Pre Development Expenses $25,000 
Total $147,738 

Source:  Applicant 
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b. Estimated period of time necessary for initial start-up  
 

Using the definition of period of time after construction completed, but prior to receipt of 
patients, the start up period is estimated at one month.  

   
 

c. Total estimated initial operating deficits 
 

The initial operating period, defined as the time from receipt of first patient to break even from 
operations is estimated to be 11 months. The operating deficit is estimated $1,815,881.  

 
 

d. Estimated initial operating period 
  

The initial operating period, defined as the time from receipt of first patient to break even from 
operations is estimated to be 11 months.  

 
 
7. Anticipated Sources of Financing Start-up and Initial Operating Deficits. 
 

The expense of operating the NF, including any start up costs and the initial operating deficit will 
be borne by Wesley in its capacity as the manager. Repayment of the deficits will come, from the 
loan undertaken to finance the project, working capital and Bradley Park operations.  

 
 
8. Evidence of Availability of Financing for the Project 
 
 Please submit the following: 

a. Copies of letter(s) from the lending institution indicating a willingness to finance 
the proposed project (both construction and permanent financing). The letter(s) 
should include: 
 
     i. Name of person/entity applying 
    ii. Purpose of the loan(s) 
   iii. Proposed interest rate(s) (fixed or variable) 
   iv. Proposed term (period) of the loan(s) 
    v. Proposed amount of loan(s) 

 
Included as Exhibit 8 is a copy of a Commitment Letter from Hamlin Capital Management, LLC. 
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b. Copies of letter(s) from the appropriate source(s) indicating the availability of 

financing for the initial start-up costs. The letter(s) should include the same 
items requested in 8(a) above, as applicable. 

 
As noted in response to earlier questions, the loan amount includes the start up costs. Therefore, 
financing for the start up costs is included in the letter in Exhibit 8.  

 
 

c. Copies of each lease or rental agreement related to the proposed project. 
 

A copy of Interim Sublease and Management Agreement between Soundcare and Wesley is 
provided in Exhibit 1.  

 
 

d. Separate amortization schedule(s) for each financing arrangement including 
long-term and any short-term start-up, initial operating deficit loans, and 
refinancing of the facility's current debt setting forth the following: 

 
     i. Principal 
    ii. Term (number of payment period, long-term loans may be annualized) 
   iii. Interest 
   iv. Outstanding balance of each payment period 

 
A separate amortization schedule for the 30-year building and for the start-up costs and initial 
operating deficit are included as Exhibit 9.  
 
 

9. Provide the following: 
a. Please supply copies of the following pages and accompanying footnotes of each 

applicant's three most recent financial statements: Balance Sheet, Revenue and 
Expense, and Changes in Financial Position. (If not available as a subsidiary 
corporation, please provide parent company's statements, as appropriate.) 

 
Since 100% of the costs of funding and operating the project are being borne by Wesley, we are 
providing information on Wesley only. The requested information is included as Appendix 1.  
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b. Please provide the following facility-specific financial statements through the 

third complete fiscal year following project completion.  Identify all assumptions 
utilized in preparing the financial statements. 

 
     i. Schedule B Balance Sheet 
    ii. Schedule C Statement of Operations 
   iii. Schedule D This Statement Has Been Eliminated 
   iv. Schedule E Statement of Changes in Equity/Fund Balance 
    v. Schedule F Notes to Financial Statements 
   vi. Schedule G Itemized Lists of Revenue and Expenses 
  vii. Schedule H Debt Information 
 viii. Schedule I Book Value of Allowable Assets 

 
Using the schedules attached to the CN guidelines, the pro formas for the first three full years of 
operation are included at Exhibit 10. 
 
 

10. Utilizing the data from the financial statements, please calculate the following: 
 

a. Debt Service Coverage 
b. Current Ratio 
c. Assets Financed by Liabilities Radio 
d. Total Operating Expense to Total Operating Revenue 

 
Using the forms attached to the CN guidelines, the following ratios for the first three full years of 
operation are calculated (see Table 5).  
 

Table 5 
Financial Ratios  

Ratio Target  
Ratio1 

Proj.  FYE  
2027 

Proj. FYE 
2028 

Proj. FYE 
2029 

Proj. FYE 
2030 

Current Ratio 1.8-2.5 1.03 1.21 1.46 1.77 
Assets Financed by Liabilities 0.6-0.8 1.06 1.07 1.08 1.07 
Total Operating Expense/Total 
Operating Revenue 1.0 

1.03 1.02 1.00 0.99 
Debt Service Coverage 1.5-2.0 1.08 1.12 1.17 1.21 

Source:  Applicant  
 
  

 
1 The normal range from the CN Program’s nursing home application form.  



26 
 

 
11. If the project's calculated ratios are outside the normal or expected range, please 

explain. 
 

With the exception of the assets financed by liabilities, all other ratios are in the normal or 
expected range.  The Assets funded by Liabilities is slightly outside the target range because it is 
in the early years of the project and there are more liabilities than assets. If the ratio was 
calculated at a later point in time, it would likely show improvement (getting closer to < 1.0).  

 
 
12. If a financial feasibility study has been prepared, either by or on behalf of the 

proponent in relation to this project, please provide a copy of that study. 
 
No financial feasibility has been prepared.  

 
 
13. Current and Projected Charges and Percentage of Patient Revenue 

 
a. Per Diem Charges for Nursing Home Patients for Each of the Last Three Fiscal 

Years: 
 

This question is not applicable. There is no historical experience. The facility will be new.   
 
 

b. Current Average Per Diem Charges for Nursing Home Patients: 
 

This question is not applicable. There is no current experience. The facility will be new.  
 
 

c. Projected Average Per Diem Charges for Nursing Home Patients for Each of the 
First Three Years of Operation: 

 
The projected charges are as follows: 
 

 2025 2026 2027 
Private Pay  $420.00  $420.00 $423.00 
Medicaid  $208.00  $228.00 $228.00 
Medicare  $650.00  $650.00 $650.00 
VA    
Other-Specify  $600.00  $600.00  $600.00 
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d. Please indicate the percentage of patient revenue that will be received for the: 

 
 Proposed Facility 

 Private Pay 22.24% 
 Medicaid 22.24% 
 Medicare 44.46% 
 VA 0% 
 Other-Specify 11.06% 
 Total 100.00% 
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SECTION 4  
PROJECT RATIONALE-STRUCTURE AND PROCESS (QUALITY) OF CARE  

(WAC 246-310-230) 
 
 

1. Nursing Home Number of Employees  
  
The requested information is as follows:  
  

Staffing  Projected Number 
of Employees 

  Full-Time 
Equivalent 

Consultant 
hr/week 

Registered Nurse  2.8 FTE  
LPN  4.2 FTE  
Nurses Aides & Assistants  14 FTE  

NURSING TOTAL  21.0 FTE  
Dietitians   20 Hours 
Aides/COOKS   140 Hours 

DIETARY TOTAL   160 Hours 
Administrator  1.0 FTE  
Admissions  1.0 FTE  
AIT  0.00  
Activities Director  1.0 FTE  
Medical Director   8 Hours 
In-service Director  0.00  
Director of Nursing  1.00 FTE  
Clerical  3.1 FTE  
Housekeeping/ 
 maintenance 

 2.4 FTE  

Laundry  .5 FTE  
ADMINISTRATION 

TOTAL 
 10 FTE 168 Hours 

Activities  0.9 FTE  
Therapist   214 Hours 
Pharmacist   4 Hours 
Medical Records  1.0 FTE  
Social Worker  1.0 FTE  
Plant Engineer  1.0 FTE  
Other (specify)    

ALL OTHERS 
TOTAL 

 3.9 FTE 218 Hours 

TOTAL STAFFING  34.9FTE 386 Hours 
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2. Nursing hours per patient day 

 
Registered Nurse .48 
LPNs .72 
Nurse's Aides & Assistants 2.40 

TOTAL 3.59 
 
 

3. Provide evidence that the personnel needed to staff the nursing home will be 
available. 

 
Soundcare and Wesley will upon the completion and licensure of the NF, enter into an Interim 
Sublease and Management Agreement under which responsibility for day-to-day operation of the 
NF will be assumed by Wesley. Despite currently staffing challenges throughout the region, state 
and nation, Wesley, through its existing operations demonstrates the ability to staff and manage 
at all levels utilizing best practices in human resources. Importantly, because of the small size of 
the NF, the total number of FTEs needed (35) is relatively small.  
 

That said, Wesley takes seriously the fact that today’s job seekers are not homogeneous and have 
different preferences and balance many factors when deciding to take a specific job. These often 
include opportunities for advancement, workplace environment and culture, the support of 
management, workload and work-related stress among other factors. Wesley has developed, and 
is known to have, a culture that supports each of these considerations. For example, Wesley 
provides training for staff through on-line programs and in classroom in-services both to improve 
quality of care for residents and career advancement for staff.  
 
In addition, Wesley has addressed compensation and is very competitive in the market. In 
addition to supporting recruitment, this also reduces turnover, which is critically important to 
continuity and quality of care. 
 

In regard to rehabilitation services, Soundcare and Wesley expect to utilize Consonus 
Rehabilitation Services to provide therapy to residents. Currently, Consonus is the provider at 
both Des Moines and Lea Hill skilled nursing facilities for Wesley, and this has worked 
exceptionally well.   
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4. Provide evidence that there will be adequate ancillary and support services to 

provide the necessary patient services. 
 
Under the terms of the Interim Sublease and Management Agreement, Wesley will be 
responsible for providing and/or arranging for ancillary and support services to the residents of 
the NF directly or through its existing network of providers. 
 
Wesley currently operates two (2) NFs located in King County. The arrangements under which 
pharmacy, laboratory, dental, durable medical equipment and rehabilitation services are 
provided at those facilities will be extended to include the provision of the same or similar 
services at Bradley Park.  
 

 
5. Provide evidence that indicates the services provided at your facility will be in 

compliance with applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations for health 
care facilities. 

 
Soundcare operated Nisqually Valley Care Center in compliance with all State and federal rules. 
Wesley, consistent with the Interim Sublease and Management Agreement will have 
responsibility for day-to-day operation of the NF. 
 
Wesley enjoys strong compliance and is currently certified by Medicare and Medicaid at Wesley 
Homes Health Center in Des Moines and Lea Hill Rehabilitation and Care Center in Auburn. 
Wesley Homes also holds Washington State Assisted Living licenses at Des Moines campus, Lea 
Hill campus in Auburn and Bradley Park campus in Puyallup, and an-in home license for 
Hospice and Home Health in King and Pierce Counties. The licensed facilities are regularly 
surveyed for compliance and the performance demonstrates the proven track record of Wesley 
for quality service and compliance with federal and state requirements. Wesley Homes has a 
Corporate Compliance Program to assure continued compliance. 

 
 

6. Provide evidence that the project will be in compliance with applicable conditions of 
participation related to the Medicare and Medicaid programs. 

 
Please refer to the response to the question above.  
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7. Fully describe any history of each applicant with respect to the actions noted in the 

Certificate of Need criterion. (WAC 246-310-230 (5) (a).  If there is such a history, 
provide evidence that ensures safe and adequate care to the public to be served and 
in conformance with applicable federal and state requirements. 

 
Soundcare has not operated a NF facility for nearly five years. Soundcare had no disciplinary 
actions during the period it was operating Nisqually Valley Care Center.  
 
Wesley has no history with respect to any conviction, denial, revocation, or decertification 
noted in the Certificate of Need criterion (WAC 246-310-230 (5)(a)). 

 
 
8. Provide evidence that the project will adequately address continuity of care. 

Describe the arrangements that will be made with other providers for patient care 
consultation services. Provide assurance that patients will be referred to a hospital 
for acute care needed. Also, provide assurance that patients discharged from the 
nursing home will be referred to home health, hospice, or assisted living agencies 
when such care is needed. 

 
Care will be delivered by Wesley using a multidisciplinary team comprised of professionals 
from Nursing Activities, Dietary, Rehabilitation Services and Social Services. These individuals 
will meet with resident and family/responsible party or guardian to design an individualized 
Plan of Care. Accurate and current medical records will be maintained with complete history 
and physical, assessments, doctor’s orders, progress notes and medication administration 
records. 
 
Nurses and therapists will provide care as ordered by the resident’s Primary Care Physician. 
The NF’s Medical Director will also be available if needed for consultation. If needed, residents 
will be transferred to a hospital for acute care services. Prior to and upon discharge from the 
NF, residents will be referred to home health, hospice, an adult family home and/or assisted 
living as needed. 
 

 
9. Existing nursing homes will document the number of patients discharged from the 

nursing home to the patients home, referred to home health, hospice agency, or 
assisted living services during the last three years. 

 
This is a new facility, and therefore his question is not applicable.  
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SECTION 4  
PROJECT RATIONALE- 

COST CONTAINMENT (WAC 246-310-240) 
 
 

1. Describe distinct alternative means for meeting the need described previously.  
Identify alternative advantages and disadvantages, including cost, efficiency, or 
effectiveness. 
 

Consistent with the provisions of RCW 70.38.115 (13)(b), the need criteria are deemed met.  
 
 
2. Describe, in as much detail as possible, specific efforts that were undertaken to 

contain the costs of offering the proposed service. 
 
Factors that contribute to reducing costs of the new skilled nursing facility, as follows: 

 
 The proposed NF will be built on an existing Wesley campus, and so while we have 

allocated land costs for purposes of detailing the capital expenditure, there are no 
incremental land costs. 

 The proposed NF will be connected to our existing independent living/assisted living 
facilities, and as a result, will be able to share certain amenities and services, 
including the main kitchen. Additionally, certain personnel (e.g., reception, Director 
of Culinary, Director of Environmental Services) will assist in the oversight. 

 We will be utilizing the architect and project manager and interior designers that were 
used when construction Bradley Park campus. These individuals are familiar with the 
current conditions and expectations of Wesley.  

 
3. In the case of construction, renovation, or expansion, describe any operating or 

capital cost reductions achieved by architectural planning, engineering methods, 
methods of building design and construction, or energy conservation methods used. 

 
Bradley Park Care Center will be developed and constructed as a component of an entire 
retirement community versus a stand-alone facility, which will help to mitigate some of the 
building costs.  The building was designed to meet or exceeds all energy codes.  The building 
includes an efficient HVAC system that will reduce the daily operating costs of the facility.  
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4. Under a concurrent or comparative review, preference will be given to the project 

which meets the greatest number of criteria listed below.  Provide documentation 
describing how the proposed project meets the following criteria. 

  
a. Projects that include other institutional long-term care services or evidence of 

relatively greater linkages to community-based, long-term care services. 
 
b. Projects which improve the geographic distribution and/or provide access to 

nursing home beds in a currently under-served area. 
 
c. Nursing home operators having (or proposing to have) a Medicare contract in 

areas with less than the statewide proportion of Medicare nursing home beds to 
total nursing home beds. 

 
d. Nursing home operators serving (or proposing to serve) Medicaid clients. 
 
e. Nursing home operators proposing to serve additional heavy care patients in 

areas where CSO placement staff or hospital discharge planners document 
significant and continuing difficulties in placing such patients in nursing homes. 

 
f. Existing nursing home operators in the state who are seeking to achieve a 100-

bed minimum efficient operating size for nursing homes or to otherwise upgrade 
a facility with substantial physical plant waivers or exemptions, as determined 
by Washington State Aging and Adult Services Administration. 

 
g. Projects that propose to serve individuals requiring mental health services and 

care for Alzheimer's or dementia conditions. 
 
There is no concurrent review. This question is not applicable.  



Exhibit 1 
Interim Lease and Management Agreement
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Equipment List
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Category Description Budget

Common Area Furnishings / Outdoor Furniture 129,407$                             
Resident Room Furnishings 183,615.82$                        
Window Treatments (apartment/unit blinds in GC) 11,005.85$                          
Artwork/Accessories/Plants 39,435.03$                          
Freight/Receive//Deliver/Install 26,387.31$                          
Interior Signage 19,774.01$                          

 Other - 75,211.86$                          
Total:

Storage Shelving FF&E 5,000.00$                            
Van/Bus 65,000.00$                          
Dispensers 4,000.00$                            

 Other - -$                                      
Total:

Commercial Kitchen All Small Wares 6,000.00$                            
Neighborhood Kitchens/Dinin   Small Equipment 4,000.00$                            
Neighborhood Kitchens/Dinin   Dishes/Glassware/Flatware/Linens 1,000.00$                            
Bistro Dishes/Glassware/Flatware 1,000.00$                            
 Other - -$                                      

Total:

Exercise Equipment 40,000.00$                          
 Other - -$                                      

Total:

Start Up Supplies 500.00$                                
Total:

Games/Activity Supplies 1,200.00$                            
Total:

Accessories; Linen Baskets 6,000.00$                            
 Pillows and Blankets 5,000.00$                            

Total:

Charts/Records/Supplies 20,000.00$                          
 Medical Equipment, Lifts 48,000.00$                          
 Wheelchair Mobility Equipment 4,000.00$                            
 Wheelchair Washer/Towel Warmer 2,000.00$                            
 Clinical Mattress and Linens 15,000.00$                          
 Other - 10,000.00$                          

Total:

Building Maintenance FF&E 5,000.00$                            
 Grounds Maintenance FF&E 4,000.00$                            
  Floor Care FF&E 15,000.00$                          
 Laundry FF&E 4,000.00$                            
  Housekeeping FF&E 2,000.00$                            
 Grounds Vehicles -$                                      
 Other - -$                                      

Total:

Point of Sale -$                                      
Wander Management 60,000.00$                          
Point Click Care 45,000.00$                          
Phone System 35,000.00$                          
Nurse Call Equipment 110,000.00$                        
Other - -$                                      

Total:

Office/Work Computers 10,000.00$                          
Tablets 6,000.00$                            

 Copier / Printer / Fax 15,000.00$                          
 Other - -$                                      

Total:

Monument Sign (base in GC ) -$                                      
Exterior Signage 8,500.00$                            

 Other - 12,000.00$                          
Total:
Total:     $1,054,037

Exterior Signage
FF&E

Maintenance
IT Equipment 

IT Equipment 
Computers/Printers

Computers/Printers
Exterior Signage

Culinary Supplies/Equipment
Rehabilitation Therapy

Rehabilitation Therapy
Salon

Salon
Activities

FFE Details
Bradley Park  Phase I I

Total Budgeted Amount
Estimate Per Unit

Interior Design

Resident Rooms
Clinical

Clinical
Maintenance

Activities
Resident Rooms

Interior Design
Overall Building Misc

Overall Building Misc
Culinary Small Wares
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Deed of Trust
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City of Puyallup Zoning Letter

87



88



89



Exhibit 7 
Policies

90



 

Bradley Park Care Center  

 

Nondiscrimination for Admissions and Services 
POLICY:  As a recipient of Federal financial assistance, Bradley Park Care Center does not 
exclude, deny benefits to, or otherwise discriminate against any person on the grounds of race, 
color, or national origin, disability or age in admission to, participation in, or receipt of the 
services and benefits of any of its programs and activities or in the employment therein, 
whether carried out by the Company directly or through a contractor or any other entity with 
whom the company arranges to carry out its programs and activities.  In accordance with Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and with the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, it is the policy of Bradley Park Care Center to admit and treat all 
persons without regard to age, race, color, creed, national origin, religion, veteran status, 
socioeconomic status, sex, sexual preference, gender identity or expression, or disability. 

 
PURPOSE:  To meet federal and state standards and requirements relative to nondiscrimination in 

Hospice practices. 
 
PROCEDURE:  Requests for services will be handled in a consistent manner by all staff assigned to 

process inquiries for service and during the intake process. 
 
Staff assignments will be based on clients’ needs, staffing level and availability, without regard 
to age, race, color, creed, national origin, religion, veteran status, socioeconomic status, sex, 
sexual preference, gender identity or expression, or disability. 
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640 Fifth Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, New York 10019; Telephone 212.752.8777 Fax 212.752.5698 

August 24, 2022 

Mr. James Yamamoto  

Wesley Homes- Bradley Park 

707 39th Ave SE 

Puyallup, WA 98374 

Re: Proposed Washington State Housing Finance Commission Tax-Exempt 

Debt Financing for Bradley Park 

Dear Jim, 

Hamlin Capital Management, LLC  hereby offers to act as the representative of its clients 

which will purchase the above-referenced tax-exempt bonds (the “Bonds”) being issued 

by the Washington State Housing Finance Commission for the purpose of, among other 

things, (i) financing the Bradley Park skilled nursing facility, (ii) funding necessary 

reserves for the Bonds, and (iii) paying costs of issuance related to the Bonds.  

The aggregate principal amount of the Bonds is not expected to exceed $25,000,000.  The 

maximum maturity period is not expected to exceed 33 years, but the Bonds will be 

subject to earlier redemption and put options. 

The Bonds will be purchased subject to the conditions of a Term Sheet between Hamlin 

Capital Management, LLC and Wesley Homes and the satisfaction of all conditions 

precedent set forth therein.  The closing on the Bonds shall be subject to the preparation, 

approval, execution and delivery of legal and other documentation at closing in form and 

substance satisfactory to Hamlin Capital Management, LLC and its counsel. 

Please call me with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Joseph Bridy 
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Year Beginning Balance Payment Interest Principal Ending Balance

1 19,431,528.30                $1,300,298.29 1,020,155.24   $280,143.05 19,151,385.25  
2 19,151,385.25                $1,300,298.29 1,005,447.73   $294,850.56 18,856,534.68  
3 18,856,534.68                $1,300,298.29 989,968.07      $310,330.22 18,546,204.47  
4 18,546,204.47                $1,300,298.29 973,675.73      $326,622.55 18,219,581.91  
5 18,219,581.91                $1,300,298.29 956,528.05      $343,770.24 17,875,811.68  
6 17,875,811.68                $1,300,298.29 938,480.11      $361,818.17 17,513,993.50  
7 17,513,993.50                $1,300,298.29 919,484.66      $380,813.63 17,133,179.88  
8 17,133,179.88                $1,300,298.29 899,491.94      $400,806.34 16,732,373.53  
9 16,732,373.53                $1,300,298.29 878,449.61      $421,848.68 16,310,524.85  

10 16,310,524.85                $1,300,298.29 856,302.55      $443,995.73 15,866,529.12  
11 15,866,529.12                $1,300,298.29 832,992.78      $467,305.51 15,399,223.61  
12 15,399,223.61                $1,300,298.29 808,459.24      $491,839.05 14,907,384.57  
13 14,907,384.57                $1,300,298.29 782,637.69      $517,660.60 14,389,723.97  
14 14,389,723.97                $1,300,298.29 755,460.51      $544,837.78 13,844,886.19  
15 13,844,886.19                $1,300,298.29 726,856.52      $573,441.76 13,271,444.43  
16 13,271,444.43                $1,300,298.29 696,750.83      $603,547.45 12,667,896.97  
17 12,667,896.97                $1,300,298.29 665,064.59      $635,233.70 12,032,663.28  
18 12,032,663.28                $1,300,298.29 631,714.82      $668,583.47 11,364,079.81  
19 11,364,079.81                $1,300,298.29 596,614.19      $703,684.10 10,660,395.71  
20 10,660,395.71                $1,300,298.29 559,670.77      $740,627.51 9,919,768.20    
21 9,919,768.20                  $1,300,298.29 520,787.83      $779,510.46 9,140,257.74    
22 9,140,257.74                  $1,300,298.29 479,863.53      $820,434.76 8,319,822.99    
23 8,319,822.99                  $1,300,298.29 436,790.71      $863,507.58 7,456,315.41    
24 7,456,315.41                  $1,300,298.29 391,456.56      $908,841.73 6,547,473.68    
25 6,547,473.68                  $1,300,298.29 343,742.37      $956,555.92 5,590,917.76    
26 5,590,917.76                  $1,300,298.29 293,523.18      $1,006,775.10 4,584,142.65    
27 4,584,142.65                  $1,300,298.29 240,667.49      $1,059,630.80 3,524,511.86    
28 3,524,511.86                  $1,300,298.29 185,036.87      $1,115,261.41 2,409,250.44    
29 2,409,250.44                  $1,300,298.29 126,485.65      $1,173,812.64 1,235,437.80    
30 1,235,437.80                  $1,300,298.29 64,860.48         $1,235,437.80 (0.00)                   
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Schedule B

Balance Sheet

Bradley Park  Phase II
PROJECTED BALANCE SHEETS
Fiscal Year-End Presentation

STABLE OCC.

2027 2028 2029 2030
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents (115,484) 13,527 204,187 460,005 
Accounts Receivable - Resident, Net 754,406 784,582 815,965 848,604 
Prepaid Expenses and Other 92,916 96,601 100,432 104,417 

Total Current Assets 731,838 894,710 1,120,584               1,413,026               

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE
Working Capital Fund - - - - 
Project Fund - - - - 

Entrance Deposit Reserve Fund - - - - 
Debt Service Reserve Fund - - - - 

Total Assets Limited as to Use - - - - 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
At Cost 18,595,160             18,607,760             18,620,360             18,632,960             
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,586,528) (2,183,480) (2,781,272) (3,379,904) 

Total Property and Equipment (Net) 17,008,632             16,424,280             15,839,088             15,253,056             

OTHER ASSETS
Construction in Progress - - - - 
Investments - - - - 
Unamortized Financing Costs 533,627 514,107 494,587 475,067 

Total Other Assets 533,627 514,107 494,587 475,067 

Total Assets 18,274,097             17,833,097             17,454,259             17,141,149             

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 342,124 361,423 381,810 403,347 
Current Portion of Entrance Deposits - - - - 
Accounts Payable 162,604 169,051 175,756 182,729 
Accrued Wages, Benefits and Other 116,145 120,751 125,540 130,521 
Accrued Interest 88,000 87,000 85,000 83,000 

Total Current Liabilities 708,873 738,225 768,106 799,597 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt 18,739,354             18,377,931             17,996,121             17,592,774             
Subordinated Debt - - - - 
Refundable Entrance Deposits - - - - 
Entrance Deposits Deferred Revenue - - - - 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 18,739,354             18,377,931             17,996,121             17,592,774             

Total Liabilities 19,448,227             19,116,156             18,764,227             18,392,371             

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted Net Assets (1,174,131) (1,283,060) (1,309,969) (1,251,223) 

Total Net Assets (1,174,131) (1,283,060) (1,309,969) (1,251,223) 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 18,274,096             17,833,096             17,454,258             17,141,148             
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Schedule C

Balance Sheet

Bradley Park  Phase II
PROJECTED INCOME STATEMENT
Fiscal Year-End Presentation

STABLE OCC.

2027 2028 2029 2030

OPERATING REVENUES

Long-term Care 6,119,068               6,363,831               6,618,384               6,883,120               

Transitional Care - - - - 

Healthcare Package Revenue - - - - 

Total Resident Services 6,119,068               6,363,831               6,618,384               6,883,120               

Other Revenue 12,087 12,651 13,237 13,846 

Amortization of Entrance Deposits - - - - 

Investment Income 2,027 2,028 2,029 2,030 

Total Operating Revenues 6,133,182               6,378,510               6,633,650               6,898,996               

OPERATING EXPENSES

Nursing Skilled Care 2,400,749               2,496,779               2,596,650               2,700,516               

Nutritional & Culinary Services 460,419 478,836 497,989 517,909 

Engineering Expense 105,877 110,113 114,517 119,098 

Utility Expense 12,560 13,062 13,585 14,128 

Housekeeping Expense 94,082 97,845 101,759 105,829 

Laundry Expense 45,855 46,249 46,659 47,086 

Rehabilitation Therapy 194,021 201,782 209,853 218,247 

Activities Expense 72,544 75,262 78,089 81,028 

Health Information Expense - - - - 

Volunteers Expense 536 557 579 602 

Beauty Shop Expense 8,034 8,355 8,690 9,037 

Spiritual Care Expense 34,385 35,760 37,191 38,678 

Wellness Expense - - - - 

Administration Expense 628,472 653,611 679,756 706,946 

Admissions Expense 79,493 82,673 85,980 89,419 

Assisted Living Residential Services - - - - 

Home Health Expense - - - - 

Employee Benefits 508,789 529,141 550,306 572,318 

Real Estate Taxes - - - - 

Pre-Opening Salaries (Funded) - - - - 

Initial Marketing Costs (Funded) - - - - 

Depreciation and Amortization 615,632 616,472 617,312 618,152 

Interest Expense 1,059,210               1,040,942               1,021,644               1,001,257               

Total Operating Expenses 6,320,658               6,487,439               6,660,559               6,840,250               

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (187,476)                 (108,929)                 (26,909) 58,746 

Equity Contribution / Grant - - - - 

CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (187,476)                 (108,929)                 (26,909) 58,746 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year (986,655)                 (1,174,131)              (1,283,060)              (1,309,969)              
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR (1,174,131)              (1,283,060)              (1,309,969)              (1,251,223)              
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Schedule E

Statement of Changes in Equity/Fund Balance

Bradley Park  Phase II

PROJECTED Statement of Changes in Equity/Fund Balance

Fiscal Year‐End Presentation

Net Assets ‐ 2026 (986,655)$              

Deficit of Revenue Over Expenses (187,476)                 

Net Assets ‐ 2027 (1,174,131)             

Deficit of Revenue Over Expenses (108,929)                 

Net Assets ‐ 2028 (1,283,060)             

Deficit of Revenue Over Expenses (26,909) 

Net Assets ‐ 2029 (1,309,969)             

Deficit of Revenue Over Expenses 58,746 

Net Assets ‐ 2030 (1,251,223)             
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Schedule F 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(9) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Operations 
Wesley Homes Bradley Park, LLC, a nonprofit tax-exempt organization of which 
Wesley Homes is the sole member, owns and is developing a retirement community in 
Puyallup, Washington. The first phase of this project was completed in July 2019 and 
consists of 99 independent apartments, a Brownstone style apartment with 32 units, 
50 housing with services units, and 17 memory care units. A future phase will 
include a 36-bed skilled nursing facility and an additional 44 unit Brownstone style 
apartments. 

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenses 

The statements of operations includes “Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenses” which 
is the performance indicator for the Organization. Changes in net assets without donor 
restrictions which are excluded from this performance indicator, consistent with industry 
practice, include releases of restricted funds for capital purposes, and contributions, gifts, 
bequests for capital purposes, and equity transfers. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities, if any, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid instruments such as certificates of deposit 
and other money market instruments which have maturities of three months or less at the date 
of purchase. 

Property, Buildings, and Equipment 

Property, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line 
method over estimated lives of 3 to 40 years beginning with the month the asset is placed into 
service. The Organization capitalizes fixed assets with a cost of greater than $1,000. 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 

Construction in Progress 

Construction in progress costs have been deferred until the projects have been completed. 
Once the planned projects are completed, the costs are depreciated over the life of the project. 
If the projects are cancelled, the construction and development costs are expensed during 
that period. 

Interest Capitalization 

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets 
are capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets, and depreciated over 
the estimated useful lives by the straight-line method of depreciation.  
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Schedule F 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

(10) 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Income Taxes 

The Organization’s parent is a nonprofit corporation, exempt from federal income tax 
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision has been 
made for income taxes in the consolidated financial statements. 

The Organization’s income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal, state, 
and local authorities. The Organization is not aware of any activities that would jeopardize its 
tax-exempt status and is not aware of any activities that are subject to tax on unrelated 
business income or excise or other taxes. 

NOTE 2 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Medical Malpractice Insurance 

The Organization’s parent maintains medical malpractice insurance coverage through “claims 
made” type policies for the benefit of its clinical employees and the Organization. Should the 
“claims made” policies not be renewed or replaced with equivalent insurance, claims related 
to occurrences during their terms, but reported subsequent to their termination, may be 
uninsured. 
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Schedule G

Itemized List of Revenue and Expenses

Fiscal Year-End Presentation
Bradley Park  Phase II

2027 2028 2029 2030
STABLE OCC.

2027 2028 2029 2030

Revenue

Housing Revenue

Long-term Care 6,119,068$       6,363,831$       6,618,384$       6,883,120$       

Transitional Care

Subtotal Housing Revenue 6,119,068$       6,363,831$       6,618,384$       6,883,120$       

Other Revenue

Resident Storage 2,957$              3,075$              3,198$              3,326$              

Housekeeping 2,957$              3,075$              3,198$              3,326$              

Guest Room

Beauty Shop Revenue 1,774$              1,845$              1,919$              1,995$              

Misc. 6,427$              6,684$              6,952$              7,230$              

Subtotal Other Revenue 14,114$            14,679$            15,266$            15,876$            

TOTAL REVENUE 6,133,182$       6,378,510$       6,633,650$       6,898,996$       

Total Per Unit

Expenses
Nursing Skilled Care

Nursing Salaries 1,747,801$       1,817,713$       1,890,421$       1,966,038$       

Supplies 230,608$          239,832$          249,426$          259,403$          

Routine Consultants 70,699$            73,527$            76,468$            79,527$            

Minor Equipment 2,732$              2,841$              2,954$              3,073$              

Incontinence Products 8,870$              9,224$              9,593$              9,977$              

Medical Supplies 224,952$          233,950$          243,308$          253,040$          

Medications 8,377$              8,712$              9,060$              9,423$              

Oxygen 2,094$              2,178$              2,265$              2,356$              

Medicare Expense ($35.30/Day/Medicare Resident) 63,489$            66,028$            68,669$            71,416$            

Insurance Expense ($25/Day/HMO Resident) 8,993$              9,352$              9,727$              10,116$            

Other - Nursing $8.50ppd 26,780$            27,851$            28,965$            30,124$            

Other - 5,356$              5,570$              5,793$              6,025$              

Subtotal Nursing 2,400,749$       2,496,779$       2,596,650$       2,700,516$       

Nutritional & Culinary Services

Dietary Salaries 12,657$            13,163$            13,690$            14,238$            

Minor Equipment 53,560$            55,702$            57,930$            60,248$            

Other-Morrison (Salary/Food/Supplies) agreement 394,202$          409,970$          426,368$          443,423$          

Subtotal Nutritional & Culinary Expense 460,419$          478,836$          497,989$          517,909$          

Engineering Expense

Engineering Salaries

Regional Engineer 5,356$              5,570$              5,793$              6,025$              

Supplies 2,999$              3,119$              3,244$              3,374$              

Contracted Services 24,638$            25,623$            26,648$            27,714$            

Trash Removal 9,898$              10,294$            10,706$            11,134$            

Elevator 4,499$              4,679$              4,866$              5,061$              

HVAC 5,356$              5,570$              5,793$              6,025$              

Life Safety Systems 5,356$              5,570$              5,793$              6,025$              

Contracted Building Services 16,711$            17,379$            18,074$            18,797$            

Carpet Replacement 4,285$              4,456$              4,634$              4,820$              

Equipment Repairs 5,356$              5,570$              5,793$              6,025$              

Grounds Contract 16,068$            16,711$            17,379$            18,074$            

Universial Precaution Supplies

Minor Equipment 5,356$              5,570$              5,793$              6,025$              

Other-

Subtotal Engineering Expense 105,877$          110,113$          114,517$          119,098$          

Utility Expense

Gas 3,589$              3,732$              3,881$              4,037$              

Electric 5,383$              5,598$              5,822$              6,055$              

Water/Sewer 3,589$              3,732$              3,881$              4,037$              

Other

Subtotal Utility Expense 12,560$            13,062$            13,585$            14,128$            

Housekeeping Expense

Housekeeping Salaries 90,140$            93,745$            97,495$            101,395$          

Supplies 3,942$              4,100$              4,264$              4,434$              

Other

Other

Subtotal Housekeeping Expense 94,082$            97,845$            101,759$          105,829$          
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Schedule G

Itemized List of Revenue and Expenses

Laundry Expense

Supplies 9,855$              10,249$            10,659$            11,086$            

Purchased Services

Other

Other-contract linens 36,000$            36,000$            36,000$            36,000$            

Subtotal Laundry Expense 45,855$            46,249$            46,659$            47,086$            

Rehabilitation Therapy

Salaries

Supplies 194,021$          201,782$          209,853$          218,247$          

Other

Subtotal Rehabilitation Therapy 194,021$          201,782$          209,853$          218,247$          

Activities Expense

Activities Salaries 59,910$            62,307$            64,799$            67,391$            

Supplies 4,600$              4,600$              4,600$              4,600$              

Programs/Outings 5,356$              5,570$              5,793$              6,025$              

Vehicle Gas/Repair 2,678$              2,785$              2,897$              3,012$              

Other

Subtotal Activities Expense 72,544$            75,262$            78,089$            81,028$            

Volunteers Expense

Salaries

Supplies (Included with Activities) 536$                 557$                 579$                 602$                 

Other

Subtotal Volunteers Expense 536$                 557$                 579$                 602$                 

Beauty Shop Expense

Beauty Shop Salaries

Supplies 8,034$              8,355$              8,690$              9,037$              

Other

Subtotal Beauty Shop Expense 8,034$              8,355$              8,690$              9,037$              

Spiritual Care Expense

Spiritual Care Salaries 33,849$            35,203$            36,611$            38,076$            

Supplies 536$                 557$                 579$                 602$                 

Other

Subtotal Spiritual Care Expense 34,385$            35,760$            37,191$            38,678$            

Administration Expense

Administration Salaries 151,921$          157,998$          164,318$          170,890$          

Supplies 5,356$              5,570$              5,793$              6,025$              

Purchased Professional Services

Licesnses/Dues/Taxes 13,390$            13,926$            14,483$            15,062$            

Legal

Accounting 3,214$              3,342$              3,476$              3,615$              

Mailroom/Postage 1,607$              1,671$              1,738$              1,807$              

Bad Debt

Miscellaneous 1,071$              1,114$              1,159$              1,205$              

Cable TV/Sattellite/Internet 3,856$              4,011$              4,171$              4,338$              

Telephone System Maintenance 8,034$              8,355$              8,690$              9,037$              

Marketing 10,712$            11,140$            11,586$            12,050$            

General Store 2,142$              2,228$              2,317$              2,410$              

Copier Expenses 2,142$              2,228$              2,317$              2,410$              

Liability Insurance 80,340$            83,554$            86,896$            90,372$            

Mission Benevolence Expense

Management Fee 306,659$          318,925$          331,683$          344,950$          

IT Shared Service 32,136$            33,421$            34,758$            36,149$            

Travel/Training 5,892$              6,127$              6,372$              6,627$              

Other - 

Subtotal Administration Expense 628,472$          653,611$          679,756$          706,946$          

Admissions Expense

Admissions Salaries 68,781$            71,533$            74,394$            77,370$            

Supplies

Advertising 10,712$            11,140$            11,586$            12,050$            

Communications

Subtotal Admissions Expense 79,493$            82,673$            85,980$            89,419$            

Employee Benefits 508,789$          529,141$          550,306$          572,318$          

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,645,817         4,830,025         5,021,602         5,220,842         

NET OPERATING INCOME 1,487,366$       1,548,484$       1,612,048$       1,678,154$       

Interest Expense

A Note 1,059,210$       1,040,942$       1,021,644$       1,001,257$       
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Schedule H

Debt Information

Equity UNDERWRITING NOTES

Equity - Prepaid Expenses -$  Loan Amount 19,431,528$                Prepaid expenses as of 7/25/23
Equity - Cash at Closing 1,000,000$                 Interest Rate (Annual) 5.50%

Equity - Land -$  Interest Rate (Monthly) 0.46%

Equity - Other -$  Term in Years 30 

Equity - Other -$  Term in Months 360 

Project Fund Earnings -$  Months of Int. Only 36 

Total Equity 1,000,000$                 Monthly PI 115,256$  

Annual PI 1,383,072$                  

Costs of Issuance Loan amount 19,431,528$                  

Market Study 2,500$  

Underwriter and Program Fee 1.25% 242,894$  Loan Amount -$  

Origination Fee 0.00% -$  Interest Rate (Annual) 4.000%

Issuer Fee 0.125% 24,289$  Interest Rate (Monthly) 0.333%

Appraisal -$  Term in Years 30 

Legal - Bond Counsel 75,000$  Term in Months 360 

Legal - Lenders Counsel 50,000$  Months of Int. Only 36 

Legal - Owner Counsel 50,000$  Monthly PI -$  

Legal - Issuers Counsel 25,000$  Annual PI -$  

Trustee Fees 25,000$  

Misc. Cost of Issuance 15,000$  

Title & Recording 0.125% 24,289$  Loan Amount -$  

Mortgage Registration Fees 0.240% 46,626$  Interest Rate (Annual) 4.000%

Printing/Presentation Materials 5,000$  Interest Rate (Monthly) 0.333%

Other - -$  Term in Years 30 

Other - -$  Term in Months 360 

Other - -$  Months of Int. Only 96 

585,599$  Monthly PI -$  

3.01% Annual PI -$  

Reserves & Investment Income

Reserves Months Timing Total Annual Yield Annual Earnings 

Debt Service Reserve Fund (A Note) 12 Pro Rata w/ Draw -$                0.5% -$  
Debt Service Reserve Fund (B Note) 12 Pro Rata w/ Draw -$                0.5% -$  
Debt Service Reserve Fund (C Note) 12 Pro Rata w/ Draw -$                0.5% -$  
Entrance Deposit Reserve (% of total ED's) 7% Via Cash Flow -$                0.5% -$  Reserve Balance Shown on Balance Sheet only.

Project Fund 0.5%
Replacement Reserves (Per Home/Year) 350$               Upon Stabilization 13,000$          

COI as a % of Loan 

Financing & Reserve Details
Bradley Park Phase II

A Note

B Note

C Note (Entrance Deposit Bridge)

Total Finance Cost of Issuance 
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Schedule I

Book Value of Allowable Assets

Book Value of Allowable Assets

Bradley Park  Phase II

Asset Cost Ref

Building 13,346,285         I‐1

Building ‐ Other 3,109,085            I‐2

Equipment 1,054,037            I‐3

Land Improvements ‐ 

Land ‐ 

Subtotal 17,890,981        
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Schedule I‐1

Book Value of Allowable Assets

UNDERWRITING NOTES
$ SF or Units $ per SF/Unit

Brownstones -$                -            180.00$              
Skilled Nursing 11,557,500$   33,500       345.00$              Per GC 3/31/22 pricing $300sf, plus inflation 15%
Fitness center -$                -            200.00$              
Other -$                -            180.00$              
Other -$                -            -$  
Other -$                -            -$  
Other -$                -            -$  
Other -$                -            -$  
Other -$                -            -$  
Other -$                -            -$  

Total: 11,557,500$   33,500       345.00$              

Miscellaneous $ $/Unit $/GSF
Kitchen Equipment 65,000$          1,806$       1.94$                  HCC pantry and Cottage club room
Light Fixtures - Interior -$                -$          -$  Included in construction
Light Fixtures - Exterior -$                -$          -$  Included in construction
Carpet -$                -$          -$  Included in construction
Construction Manager -$                -$          -$  Estimate
Whirlpool Tub 12,000$          333$          0.36$                  Assumes one tub in SNF
Other-outdoor amenity -$                -$          -$  
Other - Retail TIA -$                -$          -$  
Other - swimming pool -$                -$          -$  swimming pool equipment and installation

Subtotal: 77,000$          2,139$       2.30$                  
Low Voltage $ $/Unit $/GSF
Voice/Data/Video -$                -$          -$  Included in estimate
CCTV -$                -$          -$  Included in estimate
Door Control System 15,000$          417$          0.45$                  Included in estimate
Area of Refuge -$                -$          -$  Included in estimate
TV/Antenna System -$                -$          -$  Included in estimate
Business Wi-Fi 35,000$          972$          1.04$                  Included in estimate
Nurse Call Infrastructure -$                -$          -$  Included in estimate
Other/Estimate 198,000$        5,500$       5.91$                  Gross Estimate - $5500/unit
Other - -$          -$  
Other - -$                -$          -$  

Subtotal: 248,000$        6,889$       7.40$                  
Insurance & Surety $ $/Unit $/GSF
Builders Risk 0.80% 92,460$          2,568$       2.76$                  % of Total General Construction
Builders Risk Site Security -$                -$          -$  
Payment & Performance bond -$                -$          -$  
Escrows/Letter of Credit -$                -$          -$  
Other - -$          -$  
Other - 100,000$        2,778$       2.99$                  
Other - 1,271,325$     35,315$     37.95$                Washington sales tax

Subtotal: 1,463,785$     40,661$     43.70$                
Total: 1,788,785$     49,688$     53.40$                

13,346,285$   

Construction Other

General Construction
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Schedule I‐2

Book Value of Allowable Assets

Sources Amount % of Total UNDERWRITING NOTES
A Note 19,431,528$        95.1%
B Note -$  0.0%
C Note (Entrance Deposit Bridge) -$  0.0%
Equity - Prepaid Expenses -$  0.0%
Equity - Cash at Closing 1,000,000$          4.9%
Equity - Land -$  0.0%
Equity - Other -$  0.0%
Equity - Other -$  0.0%
Project Fund Earnings -$  0.0%
Total Sources 20,431,528$        100%

Uses Cost % of Total Cost/Unit Cost/Sq Ft 
Land 381,574$             1.87% 10,599$        11.39$              
Architecture, Engineering, Design, & Consultants 803,300$             3.93% 22,314$        23.98$              
General Construction 11,557,500$        56.57% 321,042$      345.00$            
Construction Other 1,788,785$          8.76% 49,688$        53.40$              
City & Regulatory Charges 438,074$             2.14% 12,169$        13.08$              
Fixtures Furnishings and Equipment 1,054,037$          5.16% 29,279$        31.46$              
Financing Fees & Costs of Issuance 585,609$             2.87% 16,267$        17.48$              
Working Capital 1,132,267$          5.54% 31,452$        33.80$              
Cap-I A Note 699,933$             3.43% 19,443$        20.89$              
Cap-I B Note -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Cap-I C Note -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Pre-Opening Salaries 86,738$               0.42% 2,409$          2.59$                
Marketing Expense 36,000$               0.18% 1,000$          1.07$                
Legal and Organizational (exclusive of COI) 75,000$               0.37% 2,083$          2.24$                Legal fees; includes $20K Healthfac beds (CON beds)
Pre-Development Expenses 25,000$               0.12% 694$             0.75$                Estimated, TBD if pre-dev expenses have been paid and
Property Taxes During Construction -$  0.00% -$             -$                 No real estate taxes for the first 15 years.
Other - CON bed transfer 522,500$             2.56% 14,514$        15.60$              Sound Care beds-need by 63 beds at $7,500-bank 27 b
Other - -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Other - -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Other - -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Other - -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Other - -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Development Fee & Expense 667,336$             3.27% 18,537$        19.92$              
Project Contingency 577,875$             2.83% 16,052$        17.25$              
Reserves 
Debt Service Reserve Fund (A Note) -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Debt Service Reserve Fund (B Note) -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Debt Service Reserve Fund (C Note) -$  0.00% -$             -$                 
Total Uses 20,431,528$        100% 567,542$      609.90$            

3,109,085         

Sources & Uses Statement
Bradley Park  Phase II
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Schedule I‐3

Book Value of Allowable Assets

NOTES
$17,000

Category Description Budget

Common Area Furnishings / Outdoor Furniture 129,407$             
Resident Room Furnishings 183,615.82$        
Window Treatments (apartment/unit blinds in GC) 11,005.85$          
Artwork/Accessories/Plants 39,435.03$          
Freight/Receive//Deliver/Install 26,387.31$          
Interior Signage 19,774.01$          
Other - 75,211.86$          

Total: $484,837

Storage Shelving FF&E 5,000.00$            
Fitness Equipment -$   
Van/Bus 65,000.00$          
Guest Suite Furniture -$   
Dispensers 4,000.00$            
Other - -$   

Total: $74,000

Commercial Kitchen All Small Wares 6,000.00$            
Neighborhood Kitchens/Dining Small Equipment 4,000.00$            
Neighborhood Kitchens/Dining Dishes/Glassware/Flatware/Linens 1,000.00$            
Bistro Dishes/Glassware/Flatware 1,000.00$            

Other - -$   
Total: $12,000

Exercise Equipment 40,000.00$          
Treatment Furniture -$   
Modalities -$   
Evaluation -$   
Dining Supplies -$   
ADL Supplies -$   
Speech Equipment -$   
Other - -$   

Total: $40,000

Start Up Supplies 500.00$               
Total: $500

Games/Activity Supplies 1,200.00$            
Total: $1,200

Accessories; Linen Baskets 6,000.00$            
Pillows and Blankets 5,000.00$            

Total: $11,000

Charts/Records/Supplies 20,000.00$          
Medical Equipment, Lifts 48,000.00$          
Wheelchair Mobility Equipment 4,000.00$            
Wheelchair Washer/Towel Warmer 2,000.00$            
Clinical Mattress and Linens 15,000.00$          
Other - 10,000.00$          

Total: $99,000

Building Maintenance FF&E 5,000.00$            
Grounds Maintenance FF&E 4,000.00$            
Floor Care FF&E 15,000.00$          
Laundry FF&E 4,000.00$            
Housekeeping FF&E 2,000.00$            
Grounds Vehicles -$   
Other - -$   

Total: $30,000

Point of Sale -$   
Wander Management 60,000.00$          
Point Click Care 45,000.00$          
Phone System 35,000.00$          
Nurse Call Equipment 110,000.00$        
Other - -$   

Total: $250,000

Office/Work Computers 10,000.00$          
Tablets 6,000.00$            
Copier / Printer / Fax 15,000.00$          
Other - -$   

Total: $31,000

Monument Sign (base in GC ) -$   
Exterior Signage 8,500.00$            
Other - 12,000.00$          

Total: $20,500
Total: $1,054,037

Total Budgeted Amount

Interior Design

Interior Design

Estimate Per Unit

FFE Details
Bradley Park  Phase II

Overall Building Misc

Overall Building Misc

FF&E

Maintenance

Maintenance
IT Equipment 

IT Equipment 

Exterior Signage

Computers/Printers

Computers/Printers

Resident Rooms
Clinical

Clinical

Exterior Signage

Culinary Small Wares

Culinary Supplies/Equipment

Activities
Resident Rooms

Rehabilitation Therapy

Rehabilitation Therapy
Salon

Salon
Activities
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Wesley Homes and Subsidiaries 
Des Moines, Washington 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Wesley Homes and 
Subsidiaries (a Washington corporation), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net 
assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Wesley Homes and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
and the results of their operations and changes in their net assets, and their cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Wesley Homes and 
Subsidiaries and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there 
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Wesley 
Homes and Subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the 
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued. 
 



Board of Trustees  
Wesley Homes and Subsidiaries 
 

(2) 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Wesley Homes and Subsidiaries’ internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 

that raise substantial doubt about Wesley Homes and Subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Bellevue, Washington 
April 8, 2022 
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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2021 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,472,899$    12,406,072$    
Current Portion of Assets Limited as to Use 8,413,485        12,011,769      
Undesignated Investments 14,881,520      13,706,365      
Accounts Receivable, Net 5,208,870        4,872,136        
Current Portion of Pledges Receivable 250,253           251,409           
Other Current Assets 584,115           658,266           

Total Current Assets 39,811,142      43,906,017      

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE
Board-Designated Investments 12,531,154      11,375,984      
Restricted Investments 12,259,504      13,127,147      
Trustee-Held Funds 21,717,969      25,256,735      

Total Assets Limited as to Use 46,508,627      49,759,866      
Less: Current Portion of Assets Limited as to Use 8,413,485        12,011,769      

Noncurrent Assets Limited as to Use 38,095,142      37,748,097      

PROPERTY, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT, Net 222,837,513    227,088,244    

OTHER ASSETS
Investment in Joint Venture 5,205,000        5,205,000        
Related Party Receivable 2,840,424        -                      
Pledges Receivable, Net of Current Portion 226,603           227,989           

Total Other Assets 8,272,027        5,432,989        

Total Assets 309,015,824$  314,175,347$  

 
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED) 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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2021 2020

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 1,743,594$      2,257,211$      
Construction Accounts Payable -                      209,300           
Accrued Salaries and Related Benefits 2,529,171        3,776,279        
Accrued Interest 5,178,859        5,668,523        
Funds Held for Residents 972,862           577,676           
Line of Credit -                   1,279,000        
Current Portion of Gift Annuities 121,739        122,000           
Current Portion of Resident Entrance Fees 1,292,187        1,894,592        
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 2,833,420        2,575,000        

Total Current Liabilities 14,671,832      18,359,581      

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net 185,455,594    204,040,325    

OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Gift Annuities 584,058           555,000           
Resident Entrance Fees 76,256,549      64,650,047      

Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 76,840,607      65,205,047      

Total Liabilities 276,968,033    287,604,953    

NET ASSETS
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 21,669,261      15,525,244      
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 10,378,530      11,045,150      

Total Net Assets 32,047,791      26,570,394      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 309,015,824$  314,175,347$  

 
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020 
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2021 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Resident/Client Services Revenue 63,182,765$    55,388,153$    
Amortization of Resident Entrance Fees 1,149,741        1,416,383        
Other Operating Revenue 6,663,360        2,705,134        
Gain on Sale of Land -                      3,132,294        
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 162,525           113,045           

Total Operating Revenues 71,158,391      62,755,009      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages 25,648,046      26,005,500      
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 5,066,455        5,412,169        
Depreciation 12,181,505      9,938,579        
Supplies 4,215,939        4,119,137        
Contract Services and Labor 8,873,567        6,208,850        
Interest 10,873,570      9,394,407        
Utilities and Maintenance 2,545,527        2,405,055        
Professional Services 306,190           295,530           
Insurance 928,388           755,998           
Leases and Rentals 341,421           216,291           
Licenses, Dues, and Taxes 495,081           526,343           
Marketing 501,964           453,480           
Resident and Community Programs 188,972           2,268,884        
Other 744,579           889,736           

Total Operating Expenses 72,911,204      68,889,959      

OPERATING LOSS (1,752,813)       (6,134,950)       

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Net Investment Income 4,666,679        5,637,143        
Contributions, Gifts, and Bequests 333,522           235,134           
Change in Fair Value of Charitable Gift Annuity (68,190)           (61,256)           
Other Nonoperating Income (Expense) (172,135)          (1,213,905)       

Total Other Income 4,759,876        4,597,116        

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 3,007,063$      (1,537,834)$     

 
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020 
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

NET ASSETS - DECEMBER 31, 2019 14,855,301$   9,417,437$     24,272,738$   

Deficit of Revenues Over Expenses (1,537,834)      -                     (1,537,834)      
Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Capital 2,207,777       (2,207,777)      -                     
Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Operations -                     (113,045)         (113,045)         
Contributions, Gifts, and Bequests -                     3,353,053       3,353,053       
Interest and Dividend Income -                     52,099            52,099            
Net Realized Gain on Sale of Investments -                     78,533            78,533            
Net Unrealized Gain on Investments -                     464,850          464,850          

Changes in Net Assets 669,943          1,627,713       2,297,656       

NET ASSETS - DECEMBER 31, 2020 15,525,244     11,045,150     26,570,394     

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses 3,007,063       -                     3,007,063       
Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Capital 3,136,954       (3,136,954)      -                     
Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Operations -                     (162,525)         (162,525)         
Contributions, Gifts, and Bequests -                     2,125,489       2,125,489       
Interest and Dividend Income -                     54,477            54,477            
Net Realized Gain on Sale of Investments -                     285,784          285,784          
Net Unrealized Gain on Investments -                     167,109          167,109          

Changes in Net Assets 6,144,017       (666,620)         5,477,397       

NET ASSETS - DECEMBER 31, 2021 21,669,261$   10,378,530$   32,047,791$   

 
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
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2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Changes in Net Assets 5,477,397$        2,297,656$        
Adjustments to Reconcile Changes in Net Assets to 
  Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 12,181,505        9,938,579          
Gain on Sale of Land -                        (3,132,294)         
Amortization of Bond (Premium)/Discount, Net (92,006)              (101,491)            
Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs 207,275             172,314             
Bad Debt Expense 1,008,461          558,751             
Amortization of Resident Entrance Fees (1,149,741)         (1,416,383)         
Nonrefundable Contracts - Entrance Fees Received -                        263,018             
Net Realized and Unrealized Gain on Investments (4,405,472)         (5,448,671)         
Change in Fair Value of Charitable Gift Annuities 68,190               61,256               
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable (3,052,255)         1,322,640          
Pledges Receivable 2,542                 229,946             
Other Current Assets 74,151               (212,539)            
Accounts Payable (513,617)            175,752             
Accrued Salaries and Related Benefits (1,247,108)         657,944             
Accrued Interest (489,664)            -                        
Funds Held for Residents 395,186             117,989             

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 8,464,844          5,484,467          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 3,715,617          150,000             
Purchases of Investments (772,827)            (4,097,989)         
Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Buildings, and Equipment -                        3,178,501          
Purchase of Property, Buildings, and Equipment (8,140,074)         (38,337,078)       
Change in Related Party Receivable, Net (2,840,424)         -                        

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (8,037,708)         (39,106,566)       

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Contributions for Capital and Endowments -                        13,153               
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt -                        31,271,145        
Proceeds from (Payments) on Line of Credit, Net (1,145,580)         279,000             
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt (18,575,000)       (14,165,000)       
Payments of Bond Issuance Costs -                        (434,322)            
Payments Made on Annuities Held, Net of Proceeds (39,393)              (123,656)            
Refundable Contracts - Entrance Fees Received 22,586,224        21,392,873        
Refundable Contracts - Entrance Fees Repaid (8,725,326)         (5,827,159)         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (5,899,075)         32,406,034        

NET CHANGE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH (5,471,939)         (1,216,065)         

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash - Beginning of Year 37,662,807        38,878,872        

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH - END OF YEAR 32,190,868$      37,662,807$      
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 
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2021 2020

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest (Net of Capitalized Interest) 11,247,965$      8,793,663$        

Resident Entrance Fees Receivable 4,159$               1,711,219$        

Construction Accounts Payable (209,300)$          (1,342,766)$       

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,472,899$      12,406,072$      
Trustee-Held Funds 21,717,969        25,256,735        

Net Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash 32,190,868$      37,662,807$      
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Operations 

Wesley Homes is a nonprofit tax-exempt organization affiliated with the Pacific Northwest 
Annual Conference of the United Methodist Church. Wesley Homes operates a network of 
services offering a continuum of care for the aging population in King, Snohomish, and 
Pierce Counties in Washington. Wesley Homes operates a continuing care retirement 
community in Des Moines, Washington; a retirement community in Auburn, Washington; a 
retirement community in Puyallup, Washington, a private duty licensed home care agency, 
and a Medicare/Medicaid certified Home Health agency and hospice. 
 

Wesley Homes Subsidiaries 

Wesley Homes Des Moines, LLC, of which Wesley Homes is the sole member, owns 
and operates a continuing care retirement community located in Des Moines, 
Washington. At December 31, 2021, the community campus consisted of 42 
independent cottages, 24 Brownstone style apartments, 273 independent apartment 
units, 39 assisted-living units, and 148 skilled-nursing beds, which are occupied by 
residents meeting age and health requirements specified by residence agreements. 
 
Wesley Homes Lea Hill, LLC, of which Wesley Homes is the sole member, owns and 
operates a retirement community located in Auburn, Washington. The site contains 22 
village homes, two Brownstone style apartments with 12 units each, and a main lodge 
with 80 independent-living units, 32 housing with services units, and 16 memory care 
units and a 36-bed skilled nursing facility, which are occupied by residents meeting age 
and health requirements specified by residence agreements. 
 
Wesley Homes Bradley Park, LLC, a nonprofit tax-exempt organization of which Wesley 
Homes is the sole member, owns and is developing a retirement community in Puyallup, 
Washington. The first phase of this project was completed in July 2019 and consists of 
99 independent apartments, a Brownstone style apartment with 32 units, 50 housing 
with services units, and 17 memory care units. A future phase will include a 36-bed 
skilled nursing facility and an additional Brownstone style apartments.  
 
Wesley Homes Renton, LLC, is a nonprofit tax-exempt organization of which Wesley 
Homes is the sole member. The entity owns on 20 acres of land on which a full 
continuum of care facility is being planned, which could consist of independent living, 
assisted living, and a skilled nursing units. 
 
Wesley Homes Foundation (the Foundation), a nonprofit tax-exempt organization of 
which Wesley Homes is the sole member, is organized for charitable and educational 
purposes to facilitate the solicitation, recognition, and management of charitable gifts in 
support of the Organization. 
 
Wesley Homes Community Health Services (Wesley Homes CHS), a nonprofit tax-
exempt organization of which Wesley Homes is the sole member, is organized to 
provide health services to Wesley Homes’ residents and clients in surrounding 
communities. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Operations (Continued) 

Wesley Homes Subsidiaries (Continued) 

Wesley Homes at Home, LLC, of which Wesley Homes CHS is the sole member, is 
organized to provide health services under Medicare to Wesley Homes’ residents and 
clients in surrounding communities. 
 
Wesley Homes Hospice, LLC, of which Wesley Homes at Home, LLC is the sole 
member, is organized to provide hospice services to Wesley Homes’ residents and 
clients in surrounding communities. Wesley Home Hospice LLC received Medicare and 
Medicaid licensure in November 2017. 
 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Wesley Homes and its 
Subsidiaries (collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated.  
 
Social Accountability 

The Organization provides charitable services and housing for residents who are not able to 
pay the full rates associated with the services they receive from the Organization. In 
addition, the Organization contributes to the surrounding communities in a variety of ways. 
These include, but are not limited to: providing buildings and meeting spaces to local church 
organizations, support groups, service societies, and other nonprofit organizations; 
sponsoring training sessions and fairs for seniors and the surrounding community, and 
hosting swimming classes for developmentally disabled youth. The Organization estimates 
the amount of providing these services based on the overall direct and indirect costs in 
relation to revenues. During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the amount of 
charitable services and community support provided was approximately $1,982,000 and 
$2,162,000, respectively. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Presentation 

Net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets over which the boards of Wesley 
Homes and Subsidiaries have discretional control. Designated amounts represent those 
assets that the boards have set aside for a particular purpose.  
 
In addition to these transactions, changes in this category of net assets include restricted 
contributions whose donor-imposed restrictions were met during the fiscal year. 
 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets with donor restrictions represent net 
assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are 
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other 
purposes specified by the donor. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where 
the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. The board of directors 
has interpreted Washington’s enacted Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act 
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift 
date of donations with permanent restrictions absent explicit donor stipulations to the 
contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as net assets with 
donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts donated, (b) the original value of 
subsequent gifts, and (c) accumulations to the permanently restricted fund made in 
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the 
accumulation is added to the fund. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the 
Organization to use all or part of the investment return on these assets.  
 

All donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor 
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net 
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. 
Income earned on net assets with donor restrictions, including capital appreciation, is 
recognized in the period earned. The Organization records restricted contributions whose 
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as contributions without donor restrictions. 
 
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenses 

The consolidated statements of operations includes “Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over 
Expenses” which is the performance indicator for the Organization. Changes in net assets 
without donor restrictions which are excluded from this performance indicator, consistent 
with industry practice, include releases of restricted funds for capital purposes, and 
contributions, gifts, bequests for capital purposes, and equity transfers. 
 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, if any, at the date of the 
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid instruments such as certificates of deposit 
and other money market instruments which have maturities of three months or less at the 
date of purchase. 
 
Investments 

The Organization has classified its entire investment portfolio as trading. Unrealized gains 
and losses on investments with donor restrictions and investments without donor restrictions 
are reported as with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions, as appropriate (see 
Note 5). 
 
Investments include U.S. and foreign equity and debt securities, which are held at financial 
institutions. These investments are carried at fair value with gains and losses, interest and 
dividends reported as changes in net assets. The cost of securities sold is based on the 
average cost method. 
 
Accounts Receivable 

The Organization uses the allowance method to account for uncollectible accounts. The 
allowance is based on management’s estimate of potential bad debts, historical collection 
history, by considering residents’ financial and credit history, and the general economic 
conditions. When all collection efforts have been exhausted, the account is written off 
against the related allowance. 
 
Pledges Receivable 

Pledges for future contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are 
recorded at their net realizable value. Pledges that are expected to be collected in future 
years are recorded at the present value of the amount expected to be collected. The 
discounts on those amounts have been deemed by the Organization to be immaterial and, 
therefore, no discount is recorded. 
 
The Organization provides an allowance for uncollectible pledges using management’s 
judgment. Pledges are individually analyzed for collectability and written off on a case-by-
case basis. In addition, an allowance is estimated for other accounts based on historical 
experience of the Wesley Homes Foundation. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the 
allowance for doubtful pledges was $73,292 and $73,292, respectively. 
 
Assets Limited as to Use 

The assets limited as to use section of the consolidated balance sheet consists of donor-
restricted and board-designated assets, as well as trustee-held funds. The funds on deposit 
with the trustee are limited to use in accordance with the requirements of the Indenture. 
Assets limited as to use that are required for obligations classified as current liabilities are 
reported as current assets. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Property, Buildings, and Equipment 

Property, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line 
method over estimated lives of 3 to 40 years beginning with the month the asset is placed 
into service. The Organization capitalizes fixed assets with a cost of greater than $1,000. 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 
 
Construction in Progress 

Construction in progress costs have been deferred until the projects have been completed. 
Once the planned projects are completed, the costs are depreciated over the life of the 
project. If the projects are cancelled, the construction and development costs are expensed 
during that period. 
 
Interest Capitalization 

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets 
are capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets, and depreciated over 
the estimated useful lives by the straight-line method of depreciation. The amount of interest 
capitalized was approximately $-0- and $2,182,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 
and 2020, respectively. 
 
Debt Issuance Costs and Bond Premium and Discount 

Debt issuance costs in the amounts of $6,884,240 and $7,091,515, net of accumulated 
amortization, were reported as a direct reduction of the carrying amount of the debt as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The debt issuance costs are amortized over the 
life of the related debt using the effective interest rate method. The amortization is reported 
as a component of interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
Accumulated amortization on the debt issuance costs totaled $645,090 and $437,815 as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Amortization expense was $207,275 and 
$172,314 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Bond premium of $2,941,691 is being amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective 
interest rate method. The bond premium is reported as an increase of the carrying amount 
of the debt and amortization is reported in a component of interest expense for the years 
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Accumulated amortization on the bond premium 
totaled $636,281 and $517,825 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
Amortization expense was $118,456 and $119,721 for the years ended December 31, 2021 
and 2020, respectively. 
 
Bond discount of $353,856 is being amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective 
interest rate method. The bond discount is reported as a decrease of the carrying amount of 
the debt and amortization is reported in a component of interest expense for the years 
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Accumulated amortization on the bond discount 
totaled $44,680 and $18,230 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Amortization 
expense was $26,450 and $18,230 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Subsidies to Residents 

The Organization provides a subsidy to certain residents, based on their income levels, to 
reduce the charges for rents and services. Because the Organization does not pursue 
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charitable services, they are not reported as 
revenue. During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the amount of subsidies 
provided to residents was approximately $385,000 and $368,000, respectively. 
 
Gift Annuities 

The gift annuities account was established for the purpose of paying beneficiary(s) a 
monthly annuity for the rest of a beneficiary(s) life. When a donor establishes a gift annuity, 
a lump-sum payment is received by the Organization and invested separately. The gift 
annuity liability is the actuarial present value of the anticipated cash flow of annuity 
payments, which is based on the actuarial life expectancy of the annuitant upon executing 
agreement. The discount rates used range from 4.25% to 7%. On the date the annuity is 
established, the difference between the gifted amount and the annuity liability is recorded as 
revenue. Upon death of the beneficiary(s), the remaining funds revert to the Organization 
and are recognized as income. The decrease in present value of the gift annuities for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was approximately $68,000 and $62,000, 
respectively. 
 
Income Taxes 

The Organization is a nonprofit corporation, exempt from federal income tax under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Foundation has been 
classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) 
and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). 
Accordingly, no provision has been made for income taxes in the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
The Organization’s income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal, 
state, and local authorities. The Organization is not aware of any activities that would 
jeopardize its tax-exempt status and is not aware of any activities that are subject to tax on 
unrelated business income or excise or other taxes. 
 
Resident Entrance Fees 

Residents enter into an agreement (resident agreement) with the Organization upon 
entering a community. Generally, entrance fee deposits are collected from residents 
entering into resident agreements. The Organization offers refundable resident agreements. 
 
Nonrefundable entrance fees are amortized to revenue over the actuarially computed life 
expectancy of the residents using the straight-line method. Refundable portions of the 
entrance fees are not amortized to revenue, rather the liability is recorded on the 
consolidated balance sheet in resident entrance fees. Upon voluntary or involuntary 
termination, all entrance fees not otherwise subject to refund under the above provisions are 
retained by the Organization and recognized as income. Refunds are paid at the earlier of 
reoccupancy or 120 days; however, there is an annual limit of exposure for payment of 
refunds, net of new entrance fees collected, per year, per campus. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Obligation to Provide Future Services to Current Residents 

The Organization is required to accrue a liability in the consolidated financial statements to 
cover future services for current residents if deferred residency fees plus future anticipated 
income are not sufficient to cover these costs. Management has determined that no such 
accrual is required in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Organization’s cash, cash equivalents, investments, and assets limited or restricted as 
to use consist of various financial instruments. These financial instruments may subject the 
Organization to concentrations of risk as, from time to time, cash and investment balances 
may exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the 
Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), the fair value of debt securities are 
dependent on the ability of the issuer to honor its contractual commitments, and the fair 
value of investments are subject to change. Management monitors the financial condition of 
these institutions on an ongoing basis and does not believe significant credit risk exists at 
this time. 
 
Concentration of credit risk results from the Organization granting credit without collateral to 
its residents and patients, most of whom are local residents and may be insured under 
third-party payor agreements. See Note 3 for the mix of receivables from residents and third-
party payors at December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Donated Services 

No amounts have been reflected in the consolidated financial statements for donated 
services. The Organization pays for most services requiring specific expertise. However, 
many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the 
Organization with specific programs and various committee assignments. 
 
Reclassifications 

Amounts in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year 
then ended, have been reclassified to conform to the 2021 classification. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Fair value measurement applies to reported balances that are required or permitted to be 
measured at fair value under an existing accounting standard. The Organization 
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific 
measurement. Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined based on the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability and 
establishes a fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy consists of three levels of inputs 
that may be used to measure fair value as follows: 
 

Level 1 – Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that the Organization has the ability to access. 
 
Level 2 – Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active 
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these 
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar 
characteristics, or discounted cash flows. 
 
Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically 
based on an entity’s own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity. 

 
In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which 
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement in its entirety. 
 
Additionally, from time to time, the Organization may be required to record at fair value other 
assets on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted.in the United States of America These adjustments to fair value usually result from 
the application of the lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write down of individual assets. 
 
The Organization adopted the policy of valuing certain financial instruments at fair value. 
This accounting policy allows entities the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the initial 
and subsequent measurement for certain financial assets and liabilities on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The Organization has not elected to measure any existing financial 
instruments at fair value; however, it may elect to measure newly acquired financial 
instruments at fair value in the future. 
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NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had a working capital of $25,139,310 
and $25,546,436, respectively. 
 
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use, within one year of the consolidated balance sheet date, comprise of 
the following at December 31: 
 

2021 2020
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,472,899$    12,406,072$     
Undesignated Investments 14,881,520      13,706,365       
Board-Designated Investments 12,531,154      11,375,984       
Accounts Receivable, Net 5,208,870        4,872,136         

Total Financial Assets 43,094,443$    42,360,557$     
 

 
The Organization has certain board-designated assets limited to use which are available for 
general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations. Accordingly, these 
assets have been included in the qualitative information above. The Organization has other 
assets limited to use for donor-restricted funds and trustee-held funds for construction in 
progress and debt service purposes. These assets limited to use, which are more fully 
described in Note 6 are not available for general expenditure within the next year.  
 
As part of the Organization’s liquidity management plan, cash in excess of daily 
requirements are invested in short-term investments and money market funds. 
 
 

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET 

The allocation of accounts receivable balances as of December 31 was as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Medicare 696,350$         903,081$          
Commercial and Other 1,176,215        856,961            
Medicaid 412,590           543,758            
Private 2,470,240        1,987,273         
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (1,704,243)       (1,139,748)        

Subtotal 3,051,152        3,151,325         
Property Tax Receivable 2,136,669        -                       
Resident Entrance Fees Receivable 4,159               1,711,219         
Other Receivable 16,890             9,592                

Accounts Receivable, Net 5,208,870$      4,872,136$       
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NOTE 4 PLEDGES RECEIVABLE, NET 

The allocation of pledges receivable balances as of December 31 was as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Within One Year 250,253$         251,409$          
In One to Five Years 233,904           234,985            
Over Five Years 65,991             66,296              

Subtotal 550,148           552,690            
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Pledges (73,292)           (73,292)             

Total 476,856$         479,398$          
 

 
 

NOTE 5 RELATED PARTY RECEIVABLE 

Wesley Homes made vendor payments on behalf of Wesley Homes Pierce County (see 
Note 18) during the year ended December 31, 2021. The related party receivable at 
December 31 consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Receivable from Joint Venture 2,840,424$      -$                      

Total Related Party Receivable 2,840,424$      -$                      
 

 
Related party revenue (expense) transactions for the years ended December 31 consisted 
of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Management Fee Revenue 42,422$           -$                      
Wellness Nurse Service Revenue 12,040             -                       

 
 
The related party transactions listed in the table above are recorded as other operating 
revenue and resident/client services revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.  
 
During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, Wesley Homes recognized and 
eliminated $4,215,913 and $4,171,031, respectively, of management fee revenues and 
expenses on the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 
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NOTE 6 RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENTS 

At December 31, the Organization had investments in the following categories: 
 

Undesignated Assets Limited 
Investments as to Use Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents 353,238$         21,915,668$    22,268,906$    
Equity Securities 6,711,372        10,907,699      17,619,071      
Mutual Funds - Equities 4,094,211        6,570,384        10,664,595      
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 2,202,994        3,253,770        5,456,764        
Other (ETFs and REITs) 1,286,096        2,006,035        3,292,131        
Fixed Income 228,242           1,846,628        2,074,870        
Accrued Interest 5,367               8,443               13,810             

Total 14,881,520$    46,508,627$    61,390,147$      

Undesignated Assets Limited 
Investments as to Use Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents 446,546$         25,806,666$    26,253,212$    
Equity Securities 5,803,104        11,737,818      17,540,922      
Mutual Funds - Equities 3,596,056        5,935,441        9,531,497        
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 2,049,278        3,484,188        5,533,466        
Other (ETFs and REITs) 1,406,692        2,296,285        3,702,977        
Fixed Income 395,462           494,913           890,375           
Accrued Interest 9,227               4,555               13,782             

Total 13,706,365$    49,759,866$    63,466,231$    

2021

2020

 
 
Net investment income from undesignated investments and assets limited as to use with 
and without donor restrictions for the years ended December 31 consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Interest and Dividend Income, Net of Fees 714,100$         731,855$          
Net Realized Gain on Sale of Investments 3,531,412        1,366,842         
Net Unrealized Gain on Investments 421,167           3,538,446         
Restricted Interest and Dividend Income, Net of Fees 54,477             52,099              
Restricted Net Realized Gain on Sale of Investments 285,784           78,533              
Restricted Net Unrealized Gain on Investments 167,109           464,850            

Net Investment Income 5,174,049$      6,232,625$       
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020 
 
 
 

(20) 

 
NOTE 6 RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The Organization is required to hold funds in various accounts based upon terms in the 
Indenture, agreements, and restrictions of donors, and resident funds held in trust. In 
addition, the boards of the Organization have designated funds for various purposes. 
Restricted investments classified as assets limited as to use as of December 31 are as 
follows: 
 

2021 2020
Board-Designated Investments 12,531,154$    11,375,984$    

Donor-Restricted:
Foundation Endowment 4,409,380        3,878,796        
Capital Campaigns 84,866             1,642,075
Other 5,566,140        5,551,299        

Total Donor-Restricted 10,060,386      11,072,170      
Gift Annuities 2,199,118 2,054,977

Total Restricted Investments 12,259,504      13,127,147      

Trustee-Held Funds:
Construction Funds - Bradley Park Project -                      33,263             
Construction Funds - Des Moines Redevelopment -                      2,514,244        
Funded Interest Funds 5,140,686        4,754,180        
Debt Service Funds 1,554,888        1,556,190        
Debt Service Reserve Fund 14,552,911      14,586,334      
Other Trustee-Held Funds 469,484           1,812,524        

Total Trustee-Held Funds 21,717,969      25,256,735      
Total Assets Limited as to Use 46,508,627$    49,759,866$    

  
 
 

NOTE 7 PROPERTY, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, buildings, and equipment at December 31 consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Land 8,237,266$      8,237,266$       
Land Improvements 953,643           953,643            
Buildings and Cottages 273,105,278    268,487,680     
Building Equipment and Furnishings 12,075,478      11,318,659       
Vehicles 93,244             83,786              
Construction in Progress - Des Moines Redevelopment 6,352,617        3,942,501         
Construction in Progress - Renton Development 3,228,298        2,703,475         
Construction in Progress 389,626           777,658            

Subtotal 304,435,450    296,504,668     
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 81,597,937      69,416,424       

Property, Buildings, and Equipment, Net 222,837,513$  227,088,244$   
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NOTE 7 PROPERTY, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 

Construction in Progress 

Construction in progress as of December 31, 2021, relates to the potential development of 
the Organization’s Des Moines Phase III and Renton campuses. It also includes some open 
repair projects on vacant apartments across different campuses. 
 
Under Renton construction in progress, the Organization holds a vacant land at cost of 
approximately $932,000, permits, and some architectural fees that were purchased between 
2012 and 2021. 
 
Capitalized interest for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was approximately 
$-0- and $2,182,000, respectively. All other projects are routine capital improvements and 
are expected to be completed in 2022 and are funded from operating cash flows. 
 
 

NOTE 8 LINE OF CREDIT 

The Organization entered into a $1,000,000 revolving line of credit in January 2014. The 
borrowing limit on the line of credit was increased to $2,000,000 during 2020. The line of 
credit bore interest at the bank base rate plus 0.5% and is unsecured. At December 31, 
2021, the interest rate was 3.75%. The line of credit was repaid in full and cancelled in 2021. 
 
 

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT 

Total long-term debt outstanding as of December 31 was as follows: 
 
Description 2021 2020
Series 2016 Lea Hill Bonds 48,675,000$    49,380,000$     
Series 2016 Des Moines Phase I Bonds 19,120,000      19,430,000       
Series 2016 Bradley Park 64,795,000      65,660,000       
Series 2018 Des Moines Phase II Bonds 57,155,000      73,850,000       
WA State Department of Commerce Forgivable Loan A 1,338,600        1,338,600         
WA State Department of Commerce Forgivable Loan B 1,960,000        1,960,000         
Charles Schwab Margin Loan 133,420           -                       

Total Long-Term Debt 193,177,020    211,618,600     
Add: Unamortized Bond Premium (Discount), Net 1,996,234        2,088,240         
Less: Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs (6,884,240)       (7,091,515)        

Carrying Amount of Long-Term Debt 188,289,014    206,615,325     
Less: Current Portion 2,833,420        2,575,000         

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion 185,455,594$  204,040,325$   
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Lea Hill Tax-Exempt Bond Refinancing 

On September 1, 2016, the Organization secured $51,360,000 of financing through the 
issuance of Washington State Housing Finance Commission Nonprofit Housing Revenue 
Bonds (Wesley Homes at Lea Hill Projects), Series 2016. The proceeds were used to refund 
the Series 2007A bonds, the Series 2014 bonds and 2015 promissory notes. The 
Organization deposited reserve funds under an escrow agreement in an amount sufficient to 
pay future principal, interest, and redemption premiums on the bonds. The Series 2016 
bonds were issued at a premium of $2,941,691 with financing costs of $1,143,324. The 
bonds begin to mature starting July 1, 2018 and end July 1, 2051, and have interest rates 
ranging from 3.2% to 5.0%. Obligations under the loan agreement are secured by a pledge 
of Wesley Homes Lea Hill, LLC’s assets under a deed of trust. 
 
Des Moines Series 2016 Bonds 

On November 2, 2016, the Organization secured $25,000,000 of financing through the 
issuance of Washington State Housing Finance Commission Nonprofit Housing Revenue 
Bonds (Wesley Homes at Des Moines Projects), Series 2016, to finance the acquisition, 
demolition, construction, and equipping of a portion of the first phase of the redevelopment 
of its senior living campus. The funds can be drawn up to $25,000,000 and the Organization 
had drawn $25,000,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020. The Organization deposited 
reserve funds under an escrow agreement in an amount sufficient to pay future principal, 
interest, and redemption premiums on the bonds. Financing costs to issue the bonds totaled 
$661,554. Obligations under the loan agreement are secured by a pledge of Wesley Homes 
Des Moines, LLC’s assets under a deed of trust. The bonds consist of Series 2016A (long-
term fixed rate), 2016B (long-term adjustable rate) and 2016C (short-term fixed, or Entrance 
Fee) bonds. Subject to the optional and mandatory redemption provisions, the Series 2016A 
bonds shall mature on (i) July 1, 2026 with respect to $1,290,000 principal amount thereof, 
(ii) July 1, 2036 with respect to $2,525,000 principal amount thereof and (iii) July 1, 2049 
with respect to $6,190,000 principal amount thereof; the Series 2016B Bonds shall mature 
on July 1, 2049, and the Series 2016C bonds shall mature on July 1, 2021. Interest rates on 
the Series 2016 bonds range from 4.72% to 5.75%. 
 
Bradley Park Series 2016 Bonds 

On December 8, 2016, the Organization secured $83,030,000 of financing through the 
issuance of Washington State Housing Finance Commission Nonprofit Housing Revenue 
Bonds (Wesley Homes at Bradley Park Projects), Series 2016, to finance the acquisition 
construction and equipping of a portion of the first phase of a retirement community. The 
funds can be drawn up to $83,030,000 and the Organization had drawn $83,030,000 at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020. The Organization deposited reserve funds under an escrow 
agreement in an amount sufficient to pay future principal, interest, and redemption 
premiums on the bonds. Financing costs to issue the bonds totaled $2,446,931. Obligations 
under the loan agreement are secured by a pledge of Wesley Homes Bradley Park, LLC’s 
assets under a deed of trust. 
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Bradley Park Series 2016 Bonds (Continued) 

The bonds consist of Series 2016A (long-term fixed rate), 2016B (long-term adjustable rate) 
and 2016C (short-term fixed, or Entrance Fee) bonds. Subject to the optional and 
mandatory redemption provisions, the Series 2016A Bonds shall mature on (i) July 1, 2026 
with respect to $2,970,000 principal amount thereof, (ii) July 1, 2036 with respect to 
$6,410,000 principal amount thereof, and (iii) July 1, 2049 with respect to $17,530,000 
principal amount thereof; the Series 2016B bonds shall mature on July 1, 2046, and the 
Series 2016C bonds shall mature on July 1, 2021. Interest rates on the Series 2016 bonds 
range from 5.91% to 6.94%. During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the 
Organization redeemed $-0- of the $2,370,000 Series 2016C. The Series C bonds were 
redeemed in full as of December 31, 2020. 
 
Des Moines Series 2018 Bonds 

On August 23, 2018, the Organization secured $84,100,000 of financing through the 
issuance of Washington State Housing Finance Commission Nonprofit Housing Revenue 
Bonds (Wesley Homes at Des Moines Projects), Series 2018, to finance the acquisition, 
demolition, construction, and equipping of a portion of the second phase of the 
redevelopment of its senior living campus. The funds can be drawn up to $84,100,000 and 
the Organization had drawn $83,850,000 at December 31, 2021. The Organization 
deposited reserve funds under an escrow agreement in an amount sufficient to pay future 
principal, interest, and redemption premiums on the bonds. Financing costs to issue the 
bonds totaled $1,682,755. Obligations under the loan agreement are secured by a pledge of 
Wesley Homes Des Moines, LLC’s assets under a deed of trust. The bonds consist of 
Series 2018A (long-term fixed rate), 2018B (long-term adjustable rate) and 2018C (short-
term fixed, or Entrance Fee) bonds. Subject to the optional and mandatory redemption 
provisions, the Series 2018A bonds shall mature on (i) July 1, 2033 with respect to $410,000 
principal amount thereof, (ii) July 1, 2038 with respect to $255,000 principal amount thereof 
and (iii) July 1, 2051 with respect to $1,135,000 principal amount thereof; the Series 2018B 
Bonds shall mature on July 1, 2051, and the Series 2018C bonds shall mature on July 1, 
2025. Interest rates on the Series 2018 bonds range from 5.71% to 6%. As of December 31, 
2021 $935,000 of principal remains outstanding on the Series 2018C bonds. During the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization redeemed $16,000,000 of the 
$10,000,000 Series 2018C bonds. 
 
Washington State Department of Commerce Forgivable Loan A 

On February 26, 2018, Wesley Homes Bradley Park entered into a grant resulting in a loan 
with the Washington State Department of Commerce in the amount of $1,338,600 as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020. The loan bears an interest rate equivalent to the state of 
Washington general obligation bonds. The amount of the loan plus contingent interest may 
be payable if, before 10 years of the last payment date have passed, the property is sold or 
ceases to be used as a senior living facility. The note is secured by a Deed of Trust. 
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Washington State Department of Commerce Forgivable Loan B 

On July 20, 2020, Wesley Homes Des Moines entered into a grant resulting in a loan with 
the Washington State Department of Commerce in the amount of $1,960,000 as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020. The loan bears an interest rate equivalent to the state of 
Washington general obligation bonds. The amount of the loan plus contingent interest may 
be payable if, before 10 years of the last payment date have passed, the property is sold or 
ceases to be used as a senior living facility. The note is secured by a Deed of Trust. 
 
Charles Schwab Margin Loan 

On May 28, 2021, Wesley Homes Des Moines entered into a margin loan with Charles 
Schwab. Wesley Homes Des Moines had $8,008,165 of funds available to draw under the 
margin loan as of December 31, 2021. The interest rate on the margin loan was 1.25% as of 
December 31, 2021. The amount outstanding on the margin loan was $133,320 as of 
December 31, 2021. 
 
Maturities for the bonds are as follows: 
 

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2022 2,833,420$      
2023 2,855,000        
2024 2,970,000        
2025 5,025,000        
2026 3,295,000        

Thereafter 176,198,600    
Total 193,177,020$  

 
 
Restrictive Covenants 

The provisions of the bond indentures contain various financial covenants. Management 
believes the Organization was in compliance with debt covenants as of December 31, 2021. 
 
 

NOTE 10 RESIDENT ENTRANCE FEES 

As of December 31, resident entrance fees consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Refundable Entrance Fees 71,104,802$    57,655,854$     
Deferred Revenue from Nonrefundable Resident 
  Entrance Fees 5,927,618        8,287,452         
Resident-Funded Improvements, Net of Amortization 516,316           601,333            

Resident Entrance Fees 77,548,736$    66,544,639$     
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NOTE 11 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at December 31: 
 

2021 2020
Net Assets with Temporary Donor Restrictions: 

Des Moines Circle of Concern and Earnings from
  Endowment Investment for Circle of Concern 2,236,709$      1,945,188$       
Capital Campaigns 2,928,851        4,447,308         
Lea Hill Circle of Concern 673,131           547,937            
Other 1,865,570        1,699,331         

Subtotal 7,704,261        8,639,764         
Net Assets with Perpetual Donor Restrictions: 

Grace Wilson Endowment Fund 1,500,000        1,500,000         
Circle of Concern Endowment Funds 888,548           624,127            
Fred and Arlene Brandes Endowment Fund 100,000           100,000            
Other 185,721           181,259            

Subtotal 2,674,269        2,405,386         
Total 10,378,530$    11,045,150$     

 
 
Interpretation of Relevant Law 

The Organization has interpreted the Washington Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (WUPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the 
original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor 
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Organization classifies as 
net assets with permanent donor restrictions (a) the original value of gifts donated to the 
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent 
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with 
the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to 
the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified 
as endowments with donor restrictions, is classified as endowment without donor restrictions 
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner 
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by WUPMIFA. 
 
Investment Policies and Objectives 

The Organization has adopted investment policies for endowment assets that attempt to 
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while 
seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. 
 
Endowment assets include those assets of a donor-restricted fund that the Organization 
must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s). Under this policy, as approved by 
the boards of Wesley Homes and Wesley Homes Foundation, the endowment assets are 
invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield 
results of the Consumer Price Index (CPI), while assuming a moderate level of 
investment risk. 
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NOTE 11 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Changes in endowment net assets are as follows for the years ended December 31: 
 

2021
Assets Without Assets With

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions Total
Endowment Net Assets - 
  Beginning of Year 5,839,007$          2,405,386$          8,244,393$          
Investments Income 633,602               506,594               1,140,196            
Contributions -                          268,883               268,883               
Transfer 506,594               (506,594)              -                          
Endowment Net Assets - 
  End of Year 6,979,203$          2,674,269$          9,653,472$          

 
2020

Assets Without Assets With
Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions Total

Endowment Net Assets - 
  Beginning of Year 4,575,716$          2,420,450$          6,996,166$          
Investments Income 668,734               576,568               1,245,302            
Contributions -                          2,925                   2,925                   
Transfer 594,557               (594,557)              -                          
Endowment Net Assets - 
  End of Year 5,839,007$          2,405,386$          8,244,393$          

 
 
To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on a total return 
strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized 
and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization targets a 
diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity-based investments to 
achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints. 
 
The Organization’s endowments consist of seven individual funds established for a variety 
of purposes. Its endowments are donor-restricted endowment funds. The named 
endowment funds generally benefit resident benevolence. As required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America net assets associated with 
endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. 
 
 

NOTE 12 PENSION PLAN 

The Organization has a defined contribution plan (the Plan) for all eligible employees. 
Employees of the Organization are eligible to participate in the Plan upon the date of hire. 
The only requirement to receive employer contributions is that the employee must be at 
least 18 years of age. Participants are vested immediately in their contributions plus actual 
earnings thereon. For the Organization’s portion of the contributions, the Plan follows a five-
year vesting schedule. The Organization contributes a dollar for dollar match up to 4% of a 
participant’s contribution. The Organization contributed approximately $580,000 and 
$585,000 to the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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NOTE 13 RESIDENT/CLIENT SERVICES REVENUE 

Resident/client services revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing resident/client 
services care. These amounts are due from residents, third-party payors (including health 
insurers and government programs) and include variable consideration for retroactive 
revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the 
Organization bills the residents and third-party payors several days after the services are 
performed. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. For the years 
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, approximately 28% and 29%, respectively, of 
resident/client services revenue was derived under federal and state third-party 
reimbursement programs. 
 
Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the 
Organization. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based 
on actual charges incurred in relation to total expected (or actual) charges. The Organization 
believes that this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the 
term of the performance obligation based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligation. 
Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to residents or clients in the 
facility receiving health care services or housing residents receiving services in the facility. 
The Organization considers daily services provided to residents of the skilled nursing facility, 
and monthly rental for housing services as a separate performance obligation and measures 
this on a monthly basis, or upon move-out within the month, whichever is shorter. 
Nonrefundable entrance fees are considered to contain a material right associated with 
access to future services, which is the related performance obligation. Revenue from 
nonrefundable entrance fees is recognized ratably in future periods covering a resident’s life 
expectancy using a time-based measurement. 
 
Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is generally recognized 
when goods are provided to the residents and customers in a retail setting (for example, gift 
shop, salon, transportation, and cafeteria meals) and the Organization does not believe it is 
required to provide additional goods or services related to that sale. 
 
The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods 
and services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, 
discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Organization’s policy and/or 
implicit price concessions provided to residents. The Organization determines its estimates 
of contractual adjustments based on contractual agreements, its policies, and historical 
experience. The Organization determines its estimate of implicit price concessions based on 
its historical collection experience.  
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NOTE 13 RESIDENT/CLIENT SERVICES REVENUE (CONTINUED) 

The Organization recognizes the majority of its revenues over a period of time from its 
payors based on fees for services performed. Agreements with third-party payors typically 
provide for payments at amounts less than established charges. A summary of the payment 
arrangements with major third-party payors follows: 
 

Medicare 

The licensed nursing facility participates in the Medicare program. This federal program 
is administered by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). The nursing 
facility is paid under the Medicare Prospective Payment System (PPS) for residents who 
are Medicare Part A eligible and meet the coverage guidelines for skilled nursing facility 
services. The PPS is a per diem price-based system. Annual cost reports are required to 
be submitted to the designated Medicare Administrative Contractor; however, they do 
not contain a cost settlement. Effective October 1, 2019, the Medicare Reimbursement 
System underwent a significant change in methodology and implemented a patient 
driven payment model (PDPM). PDPM payment system operates similar to PPS in that 
patients are assigned standard rates of payment for their specific needs. 
 
Nursing facilities licensed for participation in the Medicare and Medical Assistance 
programs are subject to annual licensure renewal. If it is determined that a nursing 
facility is not in substantial compliance with the requirements of participation, CMS may 
impose sanctions and penalties during the period of noncompliance. Such a payment 
ban would have a negative impact on the revenues of the licensed nursing facility.  
 
Medicaid 

The skilled nursing facilities participate in the Medicaid program administered by the 
Washington State Department of Social and Health Services. The department sets 
prospective Medicaid payment rates for nursing facility services provided to medical care 
recipients. Nursing facility rates are facility specific, meaning each facility receives an 
individual rate based on their costs. Each rate represents a nursing facility’s maximum 
compensation for one resident day of care provided a medical care recipient determined 
by the department to both require and be eligible to receive nursing facility care. In 
setting rates, the department will use the greater of actual days from the cost report 
period on which the rate is based or days calculated at minimum occupancy. The 
average payment rate for the cost report year shall not exceed the contractor’s average 
customary charges to the general public for the services covered by the payment rate for 
the same time period. 
 
Other 

Payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance 
organizations, and preferred provider organizations provide for payment using 
prospectively determined daily rates. 
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NOTE 13 RESIDENT/CLIENT SERVICES REVENUE (CONTINUED) 

Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews, or 
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of 
the estimated transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are estimated 
based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payor, correspondence from the 
payor, and the Organization’s historical settlement activity, including an assessment to 
ensure that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue 
recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is 
subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments 
become known (that is, new information becomes available), or as years are settled or are 
no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations. Adjustments arising from a 
change in an implicit price concession impacting transaction price, were not significant in 
2021 or 2020. 
 
Generally, residents who are covered by third-party payors are responsible for related 
deductibles and coinsurance, which vary in amount. The Organization estimates the 
transaction price for residents with deductibles and coinsurance based on historical 
experience and current market conditions. The initial estimate of the transaction price is 
determined by reducing the standard charge by any contractual adjustments, discounts, and 
implicit price concessions. Subsequent charges to the estimate of the transaction price are 
generally recorded as adjustments to resident and client services revenue in the period of 
the change. Additional revenue recognized due to changes in its estimates of implicit price 
concessions, discounts, and contractual adjustments were not considered material for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 or 2020. Subsequent changes that are determined to be 
the result of an adverse change in the resident’s ability to pay are recorded as provision for 
uncollectible accounts and were not considered material for the years ended December 31, 
2021 or 2020. 
 
The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of 
revenue and cash flows are affected by the following factors: payors, geography, service 
lines, method of reimbursement, and timing of when revenue is recognized. Tables 
providing details of these factors are presented below.  
 
The composition of service fees and resident revenue by service line for the years ended 
December 31 consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Skilled Nursing Facility 20,013,778$    21,542,170$     
Independent and Assisted Living 32,496,253      24,283,909       
Home Care 7,308,065        6,012,039         
Memory Care 1,482,097        2,192,260         
Hospice 1,882,572        1,357,775         

Total Resident/Client Services Revenue 63,182,765$    55,388,153$     
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NOTE 13 RESIDENT/CLIENT SERVICES REVENUE (CONTINUED) 

The composition of service fees and resident revenue by primary payor for the years ended 
December 31 consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Private 43,181,872$    36,926,421$     
Medicare 10,247,398      8,692,952         
Medicaid 7,377,646        7,539,770         
Medicare Advantage 823,958           556,471            
Other 1,551,891        1,672,539         

Total 63,182,765$    55,388,153$     
 

 
Revenue from resident and patient deductibles and coinsurance are included in the 
categories presented above based on the primary payor. 
 
Financing Component 

The Organization has elected the practical expedient allowed under FASB ASC 606-10-32-
18 and does not adjust the promised amount of consideration from residents and third-party 
payors for the effects of a significant financing component due to the Organization’s 
expectation that the period between the time the service is provided to a resident and the 
time that the resident or a third-party payor pays for that service will be one year or less. 
However, the Organization does, in certain instances, enter into payment agreements with 
residents that allow payments in excess of one year. For those cases, the financing 
component is not deemed to be significant to the contract. 
 
Contract Costs 

The Organization has applied the practical expedient provided by FASB ASC 340-40-25-4 
and all incremental customer contract acquisition costs are expensed as they are incurred 
as the amortization period of the asset that the Organization otherwise would have 
recognized is one year or less in duration. 
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NOTE 14 OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 

Other operating revenue for the years ended December 31 consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Paycheck Protection Program Loan Forgiveness 5,305,652$      -$                      
IBNR Liability Release 702,576           -                       
Provider Relief Funds 27,764             2,014,000         
Parking 122,773           82,342              
Activity Center 94,608             144,304            
Food 89,018             88,135              
Application Fees 63,760             191,021            
Guest Rooms 48,685             30,930              
Housekeeping 14,177             14,386              
Storage 11,296             10,364              
Apartment Deposits 7,000               12,500              
Other 176,051           117,152            

Total Other Operating Revenue 6,663,360$      2,705,134$       
 

 
 

NOTE 15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Industry Regulations 

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and 
local governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, 
matters such as licensure, accreditations, and government health care program participation 
requirements, reimbursement for patient services, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and 
abuse. Government activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations 
concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care 
providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from 
government health care programs, together with the imposition of significant fines and 
penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. 
Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with fraud and abuse, as well 
as other applicable government laws and regulations.  
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NOTE 15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

Industry Regulations (Continued) 

While no regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations 
can be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions 
known or unasserted at this time. 
 
Medical Malpractice Insurance 

The Organization maintains medical malpractice insurance coverage through “claims made” 
type policies for the benefit of its clinical employees and the Organization. Should the 
“claims made” policies not be renewed or replaced with equivalent insurance, claims related 
to occurrences during their terms, but reported subsequent to their termination, may be 
uninsured. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that a 
health care facility disclose the estimated costs of malpractice claims in the period of the 
incident of malpractice, if it is reasonably possible that liabilities may be incurred and losses 
can be reasonably estimated. 
 
Management is unable to reasonably estimate the range of future costs, if any, on 
unasserted medical malpractice claims arising from incidents in current and prior periods. 
 
Litigation 

The Organization may be involved from time to time in legal actions relating to the 
ownership and operations of its properties. In management’s opinion, the liabilities, if any, 
that may ultimately result from such legal actions are not expected to have a material 
adverse effect on the consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of 
the Organization. 
 
 

NOTE 16 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The Organization uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain 
assets and liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on 
how the Organization measures fair value, refer to Note 1 – Summary of Significant 
Accounting Policies. 
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NOTE 16 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The following methods were used to estimate the fair value of assets and liabilities. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The carrying amount approximates fair value. 
 
Assets Limited as to Use and Undesignated Investments 

The fair values of the assets limited as to use and undesignated investments are estimated 
based on quoted market prices for those or similar investments. 
 
The following tables present the fair value hierarchy for the balances of the assets and 
liabilities of the Organization measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31: 
 

2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents 22,282,716$   -$                    -$                    22,282,716$   
Equity Securities 17,619,071     -                      -                      17,619,071     
Mutual Funds - Equities 10,664,595     -                      -                      10,664,595     
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 5,456,764       -                      -                      5,456,764       
Other (ETFs and REITs) 3,292,131       -                      -                      3,292,131       
Fixed Income Funds 2,074,870       -                      -                      2,074,870       

Total 61,390,147$   -$                    -$                    61,390,147$   

2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents 26,266,994$   -$                    -$                    26,266,994$   
Equity Securities 17,540,922     -                      -                      17,540,922     
Mutual Funds - Equities 9,531,497       -                      -                      9,531,497       
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 5,533,466       -                      -                      5,533,466       
Other (ETFs and REITs) 3,702,977       -                      -                      3,702,977       
Fixed Income Funds 890,375          -                      -                      890,375          

Total 63,466,231$   -$                    -$                    63,466,231$   
 

 
Trading Securities 

Trading securities are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is 
based upon quoted prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are 
measured using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques 
such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating, 
prepayment assumptions, and other factors such as credit loss assumptions. Securities 
valued using Level 1 inputs include those traded on an active exchange, such as the New 
York Stock Exchange, as well as U.S. treasury and other U.S. government and agency 
mortgage-backed securities, private collateralized mortgage obligations, municipal bonds, 
mutual funds, and corporate debt securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active 
over-the-counter markets. 
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NOTE 17 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

The consolidated financial statements report certain expense categories that are attributable 
to more than one program service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an 
allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Cost not directly attributable to 
a function including depreciation, interest and other occupancy costs are allocated to a 
function based total expense attributable to a function. 
 
Functional expenses consisted of the following for the years ended December 31: 
 

Retirement Community General and
Communities Health Foundation Renton Fundraising Administrative Total

Salaries and Benefits 22,099,966$  5,216,091$    -$                  -$                  611,206$       2,787,238$    30,714,501$  
Purchased Services 6,283,714      2,556,867      -                    1,518             42,994           294,664         9,179,757      
Supplies 4,007,328      184,055         -                    -                    2,806             21,750           4,215,939      
Depreciation 12,105,912    292                -                    -                    -                    75,301           12,181,505    
Interest 10,873,570    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    10,873,570    
Rental and Leases 117,549         5,435             -                    -                    3,150             215,287         341,421         
Insurance 867,630         43,196           -                    -                    2,541             15,021           928,388         
Other 3,639,900      288,897         264,707         7,860             39,536           235,223         4,476,123      

Total 59,995,569$  8,294,833$    264,707$       9,378$           702,233$       3,644,484$    72,911,204$  

Retirement Community General and
Communities Health Foundation Renton Fundraising Administrative Total

Salaries and Benefits 22,969,010$  5,084,163$    -$                  -$                  616,229$       2,748,267$    31,417,669$  
Purchased Services 4,495,213      1,693,705      -                    -                    26,500           288,962         6,504,380      
Supplies 3,931,330      159,021         -                    -                    4,211             24,575           4,119,137      
Depreciation 9,826,515      292                -                    -                    -                    111,772         9,938,579      
Interest 9,394,407      -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    9,394,407      
Rental and Leases 110,651         5,018             -                    -                    2,978             97,644           216,291         
Insurance 715,621         29,470           -                    -                    1,664             9,243             755,998         
Other 3,654,921      251,676         2,223,284      1,092             38,520           374,005         6,543,498      

Total 55,097,668$  7,223,345$    2,223,284$    1,092$           690,102$       3,654,468$    68,889,959$  

2021

Locations Support Services

Locations Support Services

2020

 
 
 

NOTE 18 JOINT VENTURE 

Wesley Homes Pierce County, LLC (Wesley Homes Bonney Lake) is a Washington 
nonprofit tax-exempt organization formed by Wesley Homes on January 3, 2018. The 
purpose of Wesley Homes Bonney Lake is to form a joint venture with Presbyterian Homes 
and Services (PHS) and to jointly develop and operate a retirement community in Bonney 
Lake, Washington. Wesley Homes transferred net assets of Wesley Homes Bonney Lake to 
the Bonney Lake Joint Venture on July 31, 2019.  
 
Bonney Lake Joint Venture has two members, each of which has a 50% membership 
interest in the joint venture. The members are Wesley Homes and Presbyterian Homes and 
Services (PHS). PHS is a Minnesota nonprofit corporation described in Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code. 
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NOTE 18 JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED) 

Bonney Lake Joint Venture’s sole purpose is to own and operate a comprehensive senior 
campus in Bonney Lake, Washington that provides residential housing and related services 
to seniors. Bonney Lake Joint Venture was formed to develop a retirement community 
consisting of 32 brownstone independent living units, 136 independent living apartments, 42 
assisted living units, and 18 memory care units, together with a “town center” amenity of 
approximately 24,000 square feet, which will include a lobby, dining areas, library, theater, 
and fitness facilities. Construction was completed and operations began in 2021. 
 
Wesley Homes has an investment in joint venture of $5,205,000 at December 31, 2021 and 
2020, related to the Bonney Lake Joint Venture. Wesley Homes is using the cost method of 
accounting for its investment in the joint venture. 
 
Debt Guarantee 
In July 2019, Wesley Homes Bonney Lake secured $98,700,000 of financing through the 
issuance of Washington State Housing Finance Commission Nonprofit Housing Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2019 (Series 2019 Bonds), to finance the acquisition of land, construction, 
and equipping of the Project. 
 
As part of the Series 2019 bonds the Organization entered into an agreement to guarantee 
the payment of 8% of the maximum aggregate principal amount of the Series 2019 Bonds 
(Support Agreement). The Support Agreement will terminate upon achievement of certain 
financial performance targets. As of December 31, 2021 the Support Agreement had not yet 
been terminated.  
 
Management Agreement 
In July of 2019 the Organization entered into an affiliate management agreement with 
Wesley Homes Bonney Lake. Under the terms of the agreement Wesley Homes Bonney 
Lake is managed by the Organization and PHS as co-managers. The agreement has a ten-
year term with automatic renewals for an additional five-year period unless a written notice 
of termination or written request to review is delivered by any party to the other parties no 
less than one year in advance of the expiration date of the term. As co-managers the 
Wesley Homes Bonney Lake will pay a management fee to both the Organization and PHS 
of 2.5% of gross revenues. Under the agreement the Wesley Homes Bonney Lake will 
receive the following management support services, employee relationship and human 
resources, finance and accounting management, marketing and occupancy management, 
operations support, health care management services, information technology, physical 
plant and legal services.  
 
For the years ending December 31, 2021 and 2020 the Organization earned management 
fees of $42,422 and $-0-, respectively.  
 
Due from Wesley Homes Bonney Lake 
In addition to the and management service agreement the Organization provides various 
general, administrative, and marketing services to Wesley Homes Bonney Lake.  
 
Amounts due from Wesley Homes Bonney Lake as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are 
$1,420,212 and $104,926, respectively.  
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NOTE 19 PROVIDER RELIEF FUNDS 

As part of the Organization’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic, it received payments 
from the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund (PRF). The PRF is administered by the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services. The Organization received approximately 
$2,014,000, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. The PRF are included in other 
income on the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 
2020. The PRF have terms and conditions that the Organization is required to follow, and 
the use of these funds are subject to audit. Included in the PRF terms and conditions is a 
potential for repayment of these funds if they are not fully used in line with the terms and 
conditions. Management believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately for the 
year ended December 31, 2021. 
 
 

NOTE 20 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the consolidated balance 
sheet date but before the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued. The 
Organization recognizes in the consolidated financial statements the effects of all 
subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date 
of the consolidated balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of 
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The Organization’s consolidated financial 
statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that 
did not exist at the date of the consolidated balance sheet but arose after the consolidated 
balance sheet date and before consolidated financial statements are available to be issued. 
 
The board of directors and management have evaluated subsequent events through  
April 8, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Wesley Homes and Subsidiaries 
Des Moines, Washington 
 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wesley Homes and Subsidiaries as of and for 
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated  
April 8, 2022, which contained an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our 
audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole. The supplementary information in the accompanying pages is presented for the purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated 
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Bellevue, Washington 
April 8, 2022 
 

 CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent  
accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31, 2021 
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION) 

 
 
 

(38) 

 
Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes

Wesley Homes Des Moines Lea Hill CHS Foundation Renton Bradley Park Eliminations Total

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents -$                     3,215,379$        2,261,181$       2,189$             896,629$         1,742,173$      2,355,348$      -$                     10,472,899$        

Current Portion of Assets Limited as to Use -                      2,677,328          1,807,258         -                       1,462,531        -                      2,466,368        -                       8,413,485            

Undesignated Investments -                      6,035,369          4,371,844         -                       4,474,307        -                      -                      -                       14,881,520          

Accounts Receivable, Net 208,046           1,100,128 616,528 1,452,346         67,685             -                      2,132,667        (368,530)           5,208,870            

Current Portion of Pledges Receivable -                      -                        -                       -                       250,253           -                      -                      -                       250,253              

Other Current Assets 408,651           85,187               53,268             (182)                 6,190               -                      31,001             -                       584,115              

Related Party Receivable (Payable) (8,247,930)       3,790,619          9,838,655         172,595            (1,397,754)       (1,399,787)       (2,756,398)       -                       -                          

Total Current Assets (7,631,233)       16,904,010        18,948,734       1,626,948         5,759,841        342,386           4,228,986        (368,530)           39,811,142          

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Board-Designated Investments -                      11,135,135        -                       -                       1,396,019        -                      -                      -                       12,531,154          

Restricted Investments -                      -                        -                       -                       12,259,504      -                      -                      -                       12,259,504          

Trustee-Held Funds 210,250           8,129,639          4,954,750         -                       -                      -                      8,423,330        -                       21,717,969          

Total Assets Limited as to Use 210,250           19,264,774        4,954,750         -                       13,655,523      -                      8,423,330        -                       46,508,627          

Less:  Current Portion of Assets Limited as to Use -                      2,677,328          1,807,258         -                       1,462,531        -                      2,466,368        -                       8,413,485            

Noncurrent Assets Limited as to Use 210,250           16,587,446        3,147,492         -                       12,192,992      -                      5,956,962        -                       38,095,142          

PROPERTY, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT, Net 179,100           107,385,202      40,627,847       7,932               -                      4,160,306        70,503,262      (26,136)             222,837,513        

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in Joint Venture 5,205,000        -                        -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       5,205,000            

Related Party Receivable 2,686,168        46,661               23,607             -                       -                      -                      83,988             -                       2,840,424            

Pledges Receivable, Net of Current Portion -                      -                        -                       -                       226,603           -                      -                      -                       226,603              

Total Other Assets 7,891,168        46,661               23,607             -                       226,603           -                      83,988             -                       8,272,027            

Total Assets 649,285$         140,923,319$    62,747,680$     1,634,880$       18,179,436$     4,502,692$      80,773,198$     (394,666)$         309,015,824$      
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Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes

Wesley Homes Des Moines Lea Hill CHS Foundation Renton Bradley Park Eliminations Total

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 215,060$         643,843$           436,803$          211,937$          28,626$           -$                     276,930$         (69,605)$           1,743,594$          

Construction Accounts  Payable -                      -                        -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       -                          

Accrued Salaries and Related Benefits 339,638           1,147,451          351,887            485,093            63,696             21,621             119,785           -                       2,529,171            

Accrued Interest -                      2,027,241          1,192,375         -                       -                      -                      1,959,243        -                       5,178,859            

Funds Held for Residents 144,500           257,727             324,100            -                       -                      -                      246,535           -                       972,862              

Line of Credit -                      -                        -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      -                       -                          

Current Portion of Gift Annuities -                      -                        -                       -                       121,739           -                      -                      -                       121,739              

Current Portion of Resident Entrance Fees -                      489,346             566,324            -                       -                      -                      236,517           -                       1,292,187            

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt -                      1,198,420          725,000            -                       -                      -                      910,000           -                       2,833,420            

Total Current Liabilities 699,198           5,764,028          3,596,489         697,030            214,061           21,621             3,749,010        (69,605)             14,671,832          

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net 78                    73,370,766        49,284,725       -                       -                      -                      62,800,025      -                       185,455,594        

OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Gift Annuities -                      -                        -                       -                       584,058           -                      -                      -                       584,058              

Resident Entrance Fees -                      43,298,188        15,897,759       -                       -                      -                      17,359,527      (298,925)           76,256,549          

Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities -                      43,298,188        15,897,759       -                       584,058           -                      17,359,527      (298,925)           76,840,607          

Total Liabilities 699,276           122,432,982      68,778,973       697,030            798,119           21,621             83,908,562      (368,530)           276,968,033        

NET ASSETS

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions (49,991)            18,490,337        (6,031,293)        937,850            7,002,787        4,481,071        (3,135,364)       (26,136)             21,669,261          

Net Assets With Donor  Restrictions -                      -                        -                       -                       10,378,530      -                      -                      -                       10,378,530          

Total Net Assets (49,991)            18,490,337        (6,031,293)        937,850            17,381,317      4,481,071        (3,135,364)       (26,136)             32,047,791          

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 649,285$         140,923,319$    62,747,680$     1,634,880$       18,179,436$     4,502,692$      80,773,198$     (394,666)$         309,015,824$      
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Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes

Wesley Homes Des Moines Lea Hill CHS Foundation Renton Bradley Park Eliminations Total

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents -$                     7,809,121$      867,150$         262,373$       140,070$         50,750$           3,276,608$      -$                     12,406,072$      

Current Portion of Assets Limited as to Use -                      6,556,052        1,745,550        -                     1,528,325        -                      2,181,842        -                      12,011,769        

Undesignated Investments -                      5,629,009        4,322,183        -                     3,755,173        -                      -                      -                      13,706,365        

Accounts Receivable, Net (16,304)            1,787,872 996,364 963,851         -                      -                      1,455,442        (315,089)          4,872,136          

Current Portion of Pledges Receivable -                      -                      -                      -                     251,409           -                      -                      -                      251,409             

Other Current Assets 409,801           114,434           73,552             5,499             11,308             -                      43,672             -                      658,266             

Related Party Receivable (Payable) (4,184,321)       1,406,463        8,182,276        (730,975)        (1,321,510)       865,786           (4,217,719)       -                      -                        

Total Current Assets (3,790,824)       23,302,951      16,187,075      500,748         4,364,775        916,536           2,739,845        (315,089)          43,906,017        

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Board-Designated Investments -                      9,976,020        -                      -                     1,399,964        -                      -                      -                      11,375,984        

Restricted Investments -                      -                      -                      -                     13,127,147 -                      -                      -                      13,127,147        

Trustee-Held Funds 182,750           12,042,051      4,893,130        -                     -                      -                      8,138,804        -                      25,256,735        
Total Assets Limited as to Use 182,750           22,018,071      4,893,130        -                     14,527,111      -                      8,138,804        -                      49,759,866        

Less:  Current Portion of Assets Limited as to Use -                      6,556,052        1,745,550        -                     1,528,325        -                      2,181,842        -                      12,011,769        

Noncurrent Assets Limited as to Use 182,750           15,462,019      3,147,580        -                     12,998,786      -                      5,956,962        -                      37,748,097        

PROPERTY, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT, Net 236,907           107,293,758     41,934,961      8,224             -                      3,635,485        74,005,045      (26,136)            227,088,244      

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in Joint Venture 5,205,000        -                      -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      -                      5,205,000          

Pledges Receivable, Net of Current Portion -                      -                      -                      -                     227,989 -                      -                      -                      227,989             

Total Other Assets 5,205,000        -                      -                      -                     227,989           -                      -                      -                      5,432,989          

Total Assets 1,833,833$      146,058,728$   61,269,616$     508,972$       17,591,550$    4,552,021$      82,701,852$     (341,225)$        314,175,347$    
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Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes

Wesley Homes Des Moines Lea Hill CHS Foundation Renton Bradley Park Eliminations Total

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 255,461$         1,286,476$      418,015$         210,060$       42,080$           -$                     135,118$         (89,999)$          2,257,211$        

Construction Accounts Payable -                      98,200             41,955             -                     -                      61,572             7,573               -                      209,300             

Accrued Salaries and Related Benefits 1,135,325        1,409,523        477,537           541,120         69,424             -                      143,350           -                      3,776,279          

Accrued Interest -                      2,480,058        1,203,655        -                     -                      -                      1,984,810        -                      5,668,523          

Funds Held for Residents 116,000           164,141           86,000             -                     -                      -                      211,535           -                      577,676             

Line of Credit 377,000           530,000           -                      -                     -                      -                      372,000           -                      1,279,000          

Current Portion of Gift Annuities -                      -                      -                      -                     122,000           -                      -                      -                      122,000             

Current Portion of Resident Entrance Fees -                      486,362           520,303           -                     -                      -                      887,927           -                      1,894,592          

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt -                      1,005,000        705,000           -                     -                      -                      865,000           -                      2,575,000          

Total Current Liabilities 1,883,786        7,459,760        3,452,465        751,180         233,504           61,572             4,607,313        (89,999)            18,359,581        

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net 38                    90,298,321      50,095,335      -                     -                      -                      63,646,631      -                      204,040,325      

OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Gift Annuities -                      -                      -                      -                     555,000           -                      -                      -                      555,000             

Resident Entrance Fees -                      33,063,281      15,534,728      -                     -                      -                      16,277,128      (225,090)          64,650,047        

Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities -                      33,063,281      15,534,728      -                     555,000           -                      16,277,128      (225,090)          65,205,047        

Total Liabilities 1,883,824        130,821,362     69,082,528      751,180         788,504           61,572             84,531,072      (315,089)          287,604,953      

NET ASSETS

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions (49,991)            15,237,366      (7,812,912)       (242,208)        5,757,896        4,490,449        (1,829,220)       (26,136)            15,525,244        

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions -                      -                      -                      -                     11,045,150      -                      -                      -                      11,045,150        

Total Net Assets (49,991)            15,237,366      (7,812,912)       (242,208)        16,803,046      4,490,449        (1,829,220)       (26,136)            26,570,394        

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 1,833,833$      146,058,728$   61,269,616$     508,972$       17,591,550$    4,552,021$      82,701,852$     (341,225)$        314,175,347$    
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Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes

Wesley Homes Des Moines Lea Hill CHS Foundation Renton Bradley Park Eliminations Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Resident/Client Services Revenue -$                      29,893,912$      15,212,290$      8,979,983$         -$                      -$                       9,825,586$       (729,006)$        63,182,765$    
Amortization of Resident Entrance Fees -                        1,111,031          5,733                 -                         -                        -                         32,977              -                       1,149,741        
Other Operating Revenue -                        3,921,403          1,350,350          1,090,004           -                        -                         301,603            -                       6,663,360        
Gain on Sale of Land -                        -                         -                         -                         -                        -                         -                        -                       -                       
Net Assets Released from Restrictions -                        -                         -                         -                         162,525            -                         -                        -                       162,525           

Total Operating Revenues -                        34,926,346        16,568,373        10,069,987         162,525            -                         10,160,166       (729,006)          71,158,391      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages 2,380,868         11,958,543        4,459,731          4,448,373           525,663            -                         1,874,868         -                       25,648,046      
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 406,370            2,571,854          856,778             767,718              85,543              -                         378,192            -                       5,066,455        
Depreciation 75,301              6,331,645          2,019,027          292                     -                        -                         3,755,240         -                       12,181,505      
Supplies 21,750              2,499,020          908,629             184,055              2,806                -                         599,679            -                       4,215,939        
Contract Services and Labor 666,657            2,745,697          2,661,782          2,546,905           524                   -                         823,431            (571,429)          8,873,567        
Interest -                        4,539,044          2,310,313          -                         -                        -                         4,024,213         -                       10,873,570      
Utilities and Maintenance 9,233                1,387,811          685,806             18,483                1,532                -                         442,662            -                       2,545,527        
Professional Services 199,436            47,038               5,247                 9,962                  42,470              1,518                 519                   -                       306,190           
Insurance 15,021              581,545             181,025             43,196                2,541                -                         105,060            -                       928,388           
Leases and Rentals 215,287            74,155               38,471               5,435                  3,150                -                         4,923                -                       341,421           
Licenses, Dues, and Taxes 86,411              201,434             102,435             64,626                2,853                7,860                 29,462              -                       495,081           
Marketing 121,974            118,874             48,423               59,346                28,212              -                         125,135            -                       501,964           
Resident and Community Programs -                        70,587               6,105                 -                         264,707            -                         5,150                (157,577)          188,972           
Other 17,605              300,340             140,437             146,442              6,939                -                         132,816            -                       744,579           
Management Fees (4,215,913)        2,045,759          983,022             595,096              -                        -                         592,036            -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenses -                        35,473,346        15,407,231        8,889,929           966,940            9,378                 12,893,386       (729,006)          72,911,204      

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) -                        (547,000)            1,161,142          1,180,058           (804,415)           (9,378)                (2,733,220)        -                       (1,752,813)       

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Net Investment Income -                        2,156,848          620,477             -                         1,784,357         -                         104,997            -                       4,666,679        
Contributions, Gifts, and Bequests -                        -                         -                         -                         333,522            -                         -                        -                       333,522           
Change in Fair Value of Charitable Gift Annuity -                        -                         -                         -                         (68,190)             -                         -                        -                       (68,190)            
Other Nonoperating Income (Expense) -                        (171,752)            -                         -                         (383)                  -                         -                        -                       (172,135)          

Total Other Income -                        1,985,096          620,477             -                         2,049,306         -                         104,997            -                       4,759,876        

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES -                        1,438,096          1,781,619          1,180,058           1,244,891         (9,378)                (2,628,223)        -                       3,007,063        

Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Capital -                        1,814,875          -                         -                         -                        -                         1,322,079         -                       3,136,954        

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS -                        3,252,971          1,781,619          1,180,058           1,244,891         (9,378)                (1,306,144)        -                       6,144,017        

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions  - Beginning of Year (49,991)             15,237,366        (7,812,912)         (242,208)            5,757,896         4,490,449          (1,829,220)        (26,136)            15,525,244      

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS  - END OF YEAR (49,991)$           18,490,337$      (6,031,293)$       937,850$            7,002,787$       4,481,071$        (3,135,364)$      (26,136)$          21,669,261$    
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Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes

Wesley Homes Des Moines Lea Hill CHS Foundation Renton Bradley Park Eliminations Total

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

OTHER SUPPORT (EXPENDITURES)

Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Capital -$                      (1,814,875)$       -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                       (1,322,079)$      -$                     (3,136,954)$     

Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Operations -                        -                         -                         -                         (162,525)           -                         -                        -                       (162,525)          

Transfers Between Affilaites for Capital -                        1,814,875          -                         -                         (3,136,954)        -                         1,322,079         -                       -                       

Contributions, Gifts, and Bequests -                        -                         -                         -                         2,125,489         -                         -                        -                       2,125,489        

Interest and Dividend Income -                        -                         -                         -                         54,477              -                         -                        -                       54,477             

Net Realized Gain on Sale of Investments -                        -                         -                         -                         285,784            -                         -                        -                       285,784           

Net Unrealized Gain on Investments -                        -                         -                         -                         167,109            -                         -                        -                       167,109           

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS -                        -                         -                         -                         (666,620)           -                         -                        -                       (666,620)          

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions  - Beginning of Year -                        -                         -                         -                         11,045,150       -                         -                        -                       11,045,150      

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS  - END OF YEAR -$                      -$                       -$                       -$                       10,378,530$     -$                       -$                      -$                     10,378,530$    

 
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION) 

 
 
 

(44) 

 
Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes

Wesley Homes Des Moines Lea Hill CHS Foundation Renton Bradley Park Eliminations Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Resident/Client Services Revenue, Net -$                      25,437,633$      14,728,003$     7,214,686$       -$                      -$                       8,527,919$       (520,088)$        55,388,153$    

Amortization of Resident Entrance Fees -                        1,369,542          14,871              -                        -                        -                         31,970              -                       1,416,383        

Other Operating Revenue -                        1,801,480          607,538            208,994            -                        -                         87,122              -                       2,705,134        

Gain on Sale of Land -                        -                         -                        -                        -                        3,132,294          -                        -                       3,132,294        

Net Assets Released from Restrictions -                        -                         -                        -                        113,045            -                         -                        -                       113,045           

Total Operating Revenues -                        28,608,655        15,350,412       7,423,680         113,045            3,132,294          8,647,011         (520,088)          62,755,009      

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages 2,322,737         12,664,255        4,502,427         4,287,891         529,443            -                         1,698,747         -                       26,005,500      

Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 425,530            2,816,508          923,871            796,272            86,786              -                         363,202            -                       5,412,169        

Depreciation 111,772            4,098,679          2,000,139         292                   -                        -                         3,727,697         -                       9,938,579        

Supplies 24,575              2,381,396          979,030            159,021            4,211                -                         570,904            -                       4,119,137        

Contract Services and Labor 652,778            1,906,046          1,949,535         1,665,597         477                   -                         550,980            (516,563)          6,208,850        

Interest -                        2,911,058          2,331,452         -                        -                        -                         4,151,897         -                       9,394,407        

Utilities and Maintenance 9,491                1,362,911          592,185            14,023              997                   217                    425,231            -                       2,405,055        

Professional Services 152,747            74,912               12,449              28,108              26,023              -                         1,291                -                       295,530           

Insurance 9,243                471,112             166,596            29,470              1,664                -                         77,913              -                       755,998           

Leases and Rentals 97,644              67,725               38,557              5,018                2,978                -                         4,369                -                       216,291           

Licenses, Dues, and Taxes 86,486              209,361             93,592              78,588              4,786                875                    52,655              -                       526,343           

Marketing 115,926            120,743             42,215              40,066              28,142              -                         106,388            -                       453,480           

Resident and Community Programs -                        36,824               5,747                -                        2,223,284         -                         3,029                -                       2,268,884        

Other 162,102            298,230             143,460            118,999            4,595                -                         162,350            -                       889,736           

Management Fees (4,171,031)        2,214,268          978,189            453,000            -                        -                         525,574            -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenses -                        31,634,028        14,759,444       7,676,345         2,913,386         1,092                 12,422,227       (516,563)          68,889,959      

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) -                        (3,025,373)         590,968            (252,665)           (2,800,341)        3,131,202          (3,775,216)        (3,525)              (6,134,950)       

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Net Investment Income -                        2,505,102          812,668            -                        2,213,504         -                         105,869            -                       5,637,143        

Contributions, Gifts, and Bequests -                        -                         -                        -                        235,134            -                         -                        -                       235,134           

Change in Fair Value of Charitable Gift Annuity -                        -                         -                        -                        (61,256)             -                         -                        -                       (61,256)            

Other Nonoperating Income (Expense) -                        (1,254,615)         40,710              -                        -                        -                         -                        -                       (1,213,905)       

Total Other Income -                        1,250,487          853,378            -                        2,387,382         -                         105,869            -                       4,597,116        

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES -                        (1,774,886)         1,444,346         (252,665)           (412,959)           3,131,202          (3,669,347)        (3,525)              (1,537,834)       

Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Capital -                        -                         -                        -                        2,207,777         -                         -                        -                       2,207,777        

Equity Transfer -                        172,475 -                        -                        (176,000)           -                         -                        3,525               -                       

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS -                        (1,602,411)         1,444,346         (252,665)           1,618,818         3,131,202          (3,669,347)        -                       669,943           

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions  - Beginning of Year (49,991)             16,839,777        (9,257,258)        10,457              4,139,078         1,359,247          1,840,127         (26,136)            14,855,301      

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS  -

  END OF YEAR (49,991)$           15,237,366$      (7,812,912)$      (242,208)$         5,757,896$       4,490,449$        (1,829,220)$      (26,136)$          15,525,244$    
 



WESLEY HOMES AND SUBSIDIARIES 
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Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes Wesley Homes

Wesley Homes Des Moines Lea Hill CHS Foundation Renton Bradley Park Eliminations Total

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

OTHER SUPPORT (EXPENDITURES)
Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Capital -$                      -$                       -$                      -$                      (2,207,777)$      -$                       -$                      -$                     (2,207,777)$     
Net Assets Released from Restrictions for Operations -                        -                         -                        -                        (113,045)           -                         -                        -                       (113,045)          
Contributions, Gifts, and Bequests -                        -                         -                        -                        3,353,053         -                         -                        -                       3,353,053        
Interest and Dividend Income -                        -                         -                        -                        52,099              -                         -                        -                       52,099             
Net Realized Gain on Sale of Investments -                        -                         -                        -                        78,533              -                         -                        -                       78,533             
Net Unrealized Loss on Investments -                        -                         -                        -                        464,850            -                         -                        -                       464,850           

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS -                        -                         -                        -                        1,627,713         -                         -                        -                       1,627,713        

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions  - Beginning of Year -                        -                         -                        -                        9,417,437         -                         -                        -                       9,417,437        

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS  - END OF YEAR -$                      -$                       -$                      -$                      11,045,150$     -$                       -$                      -$                     11,045,150$    
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